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1900 Deposit Guaranty Tower 
333 "lexas Street 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Relm rt 

']'o tile Honorable M embers of the Board & Aldermen and 
Honorable Dan Hollingsworth, M ayor 

City of Ruston, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the accompanying primary govern ment financial statements and tile combining, 
individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Ruston, Louisiana as 
of and for the year ended Septem ber 30, 1998 as listed in the Table of Contents as Exhibits 1-5 and A-1 to 
l-1. These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the City of Rustou, Louisiana's 
m anagem ent. Our respousibility is to express an opinion on these financial statem ents and schedules based 
on our audit. 

Except as discussed in the tw o follow ing paragraphs, w e conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally 
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Audithlg Standards issued by the Comptroller General of/he United States. Those standards require thai 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w hether the financial statemeuts arc 
free of material m isstatement. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
am ounts ~nd disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also inchtdes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statem ent presentation. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about Year 2000 lssues, 
requires disclosure of certain matters regarding the Year 2000 issue. The City of Ruston, l.ouisiana Ires 
included such disclosures in N ote 19. Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its 
effects and the success of related rem ediation efforts w ill not be fully determ inable until the year 2000 and 
thereafter. Accordingly, insufficient audit evidence exists to support the City of Ruston, Louisiana's 
disclosures w ith respect to the Year 2000 issue made in N ote 19. Further, we do not provide assurance 
that the City of Ruston, Louisiana is, or w ill be, Year 2000 ready, that the City of Ruston, Louisiana's Year 
2000 rem ediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties w ith which tbc City of 
Ruston, Louisiana does business w ill be Year 2000 ready. 

For the year ended September 30, 1998, the City of Ruston, Louisiaua did not maintain adequate 
accounting records from which to determ ine the financial position and results of operations for the Section 
8 Existing }lousing, Section 8 M odrehab Housing and Section 8 Voucher Housing Special Revenue Funds. 
It w as not practicable to extend our auditing procedures sufficiently to satisfy ourselves as lo the fairness 
of financial position and results of operations for those funds as of Septem ber 30, 1998. 

Because of the matter discussed in the fourth paragraph, the scope of our work was not suffi cient to enable 
us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the financial position of the special revenue fire d type 
as of Septem ber 30, 1998, and the results of its operations for the year then ended. Further, the scope of 
our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and w e do not express, an opinion on the financial 
position of the Section 8 Existing Housing Fund, the Section 8 M odrehab Housing Fund, and the Section 8 
Voucher }lousing special revenue funds as of September 30, 1998, and the results of their operations for 
the year then ended. 
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A prim ary govern m ent is a legal entity or body politic and includes all funds, organizations, institutions, 
agencies, depam ncnts, and offices that are not legally separate. Suctl legally separate entities are referred 

to as component units. In our opinion, except for tile effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have 
been determ ined to be necessary had w e been able to exam ine evidence regarding Year 2000 disclosures, 
tire general, debt service, capital projects, proprietary, and fiduciary fund types financial statements and 
account group schedules referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the financial position of 
those fund types of the primary  government of the City of Ruston, Louisiana as of September 30, 1998, 
and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in 
conform ity w ith generally accepted accounting principles. A lso, in our opinion, except for the effects of 
such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had we been able to examine 
evidence regarding Year 2000 disclosures, the combining, individual fired, and account group financial 

statements and schedules of the general, debt service, capital projects, proprietary, and fiduciary fired type 
referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the financial position of each of the individual 
flmds and account groups at Septem ber 30, 1998, and the results of operations of such ftmds and the cash 
flows of individual proprietary funds for the year then ended in conformity w ith generally accepted 
accounting principles. Further, in our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might 
have been determ ined to be necessary  had we been able to exam ine evidence regarding Year 2000 
disclosures, the 1968 Sales Tax, 1985 Sales Tax, 1990 Sales Tax, Ruston Parks & Recreation Board, State 
Revenue Sharing, D .A .R.T. Grant Program , Decentralized A rls Grant and H ealth &  Safety Rehah special 
revenue :hJtnds present fairly, in all m aterial respects, tile financial position of each of those individual 
funds as of Septem ber 30, 1998, and the results of operations of such fim ds for the year then ended in 
conform ity w ith generally accepted accounting principles. 

ltowever, the prinmry government financial statements, because they do not include tile financial data of 
com ponent units of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the fiuancial 
position of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, as of Septem ber 30, 1998, and tile results of its operations and 
the cash flows of its proprietary fired types for the year then ended in conform ity w ith generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

In accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated M arch 5, 1999, 
on our consideration of the City of Ruston, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and our 
tests of its compliance w ith laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

O ur audit was m ade for the purpose of form ing an opiniou on the general purpose financial slatem enls 
taken as a whole and on the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statem ents and 
schedules listed in the first paragraph. The accompanying financial information listed as supplementary 
information in the Table of Contents as Schedules 1-5 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the financial statements of the City of Ruston, Louisiana. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly presented in all m aterial respects in relation to the financial statem ents taken as a w hole. 

M arch 5, 11999 

Lr-/:' 
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G ENERAL PURPO SE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
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CITY O F RUSTON, LO UISIANA Exhibit 4 
CO M BINED STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENSES 

& CHANG ES IN RETAINED EARNING S 
ALL PRO PRIETARY FUND TYPES 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

O perating Revenues: 
Charges fl)r Service 
Rent Incom e 

PRO PRIETARY 
FUND TYPES 

ENTERPRISE 
NTERNAL 
SERVICE 

$18,418,031 $139,340 
16.817 

Charges to Other Funds and Em ployees 
M iscellaneous Incom e 489,809 

Total O perating Revenues 

O perating Expenses 
Direct Expense 
Indirect Expense 

Total O perating Expenses 

Operating Income(Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Interest Incom e 
Sale of Hay 
Interest Expense & Fiscal Charges 

Net Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses) 

ncom e Befbre O perating 
Transfers 

1,848,693 
49.144 

TOTALS 
(MEMORANDUM 

ONLY) 

$18,557,371 
16,817 

1,848,693 
538.953 

18.924.657 2.037,177 20,981.834 

13,977,335 2,038,371 
1.706.482 

16,015,706 
1.706.482 

15.683.817 2.038.371 17,722,188 

3,240,840 (1,194) 3,239,646 

463,090 28,784 
1,955 

(467,140) 

491,874 
1,955 

(467,140) 

(2,095) 28,784 26,689 

3,238,745 27,590 3,266,335 

Operating "l-ransfers Out (Note 14) (1,071,024) 

Net Incom e 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 
Acquired w ith Capital G rants 

Retained Earnings, October 1 

Retained Earnings, Septem ber 30 

(1,071,024) 

2.167.721 27.590 2,195.311 

440.246 440.246 

24,133,762 24,360 24,158,122 

$26,741,729 $51,950 $26,793,679 
= = = = = = = = = = = =  = = = = = = = = ~ =  = = = = = = ~ = = = = = = = 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 
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CITY OF RUSTON , LOUISIANA Exhibit 5 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S 

ALL PRO PRIETARY FUND TYPES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 1998 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 

Operating income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation and Amortization 

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets: 
Accounts Receivables 
Due from Other Governmental Units 
Inventories 
Due From Other Funds 
Other Assets 

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities: 
Bank Overdraft 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued t.iabilities 
Custom er Deposits 
Due to Other Funds 
Compensated Absences 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

ENTERPRISE 
FUNDS 

NTERNAL TOTALS 
SERVICE (MEMORANDUM) 
FUNDS ONLY) 

$3,240,840 ($1,194) $3,239,646 

2,162,753 

104,110 

(32,500) 
(42,200) 
70,842 
(8,026) 

625,476 
2,460 
13,828 

(392,912) 
(7,789) 

(88,24?) 

100.324 

(102,137) 
13,937 
75,258 

35,238 
15,069 

2.162.753 

15,663 
(32,500) 
(42,200) 
171,166 

(8,026) 

(102,137) 
639,413 
77,718 
13,828 

(357,674) 
7,280 

5,736,882 48,248 5,785,130 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities: 

Operating "Transfers Out (1,071,024) 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related 
Financing Aotivities: 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
Capital Lease Obligation Payments 
Proceeds on the Sale of Fixed Assets 
Principal Paid on Bond Maturities 
Interest Paid on Bonds 
Capital Grants 

Net Cash Used For Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Interest Received 
Sale of Hay 
Investmenl Sales/Maturities 

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

Net Increase iin Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, October 1 

(1,015,476) 
(79,063) 
11,615 

(1,040,000) 
(515,555) 
75,150 

(2,563,329) 

463,090 28,784 
1,955 

493,649 

465,045 522,433 

(1,071,024) 

(1,015,476) 
(79,063) 
11,615 

(1,040,009) 
(515,855) 
75.150 

(2,563,329 

491,874 
1,955 

493.649 

987.478 

2,567,574 570,681 3,138,255 

9,655,376 131,095 9.786,471 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 30 $12,222,950 
= = = = = = = = = = = = = 

Nencash: Acquisition of fixed assets through cap tal lease: W ater $49,300. 

See accom panying notes to financial statements 

$701,776 $12,924,726 
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CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 1 - SUM MARY O F SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING PO LICIES 

A. REPO RTING ENTITY 

The accounting policies of the City of Ruston conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governm ents. The following is a sum m ary of the m ore significant 
accounting policies: 

The City of Ruston, Louisiana, was incorporated in 1898, under the provisions of the Lawrason 
Act. Tbe City operates under a M ayor-Board of Alderman form of governm ent. The City's 
major operations include public safety, fire protection, public works, recreation and parks, utility 
services, and general adm inistrative services. In addition, the City exercises sufficient control 
over other governmental agencies and authorities that they are included as part of the City's 
reporting entity. 

The basic: criterion for determ ining whether a governm ental departm ent, agency, institution, 
com m ission, public authority, or other governm ental organization should be included in a 
prim ary governm ental unit's reporting entity for general purpose financial statem ents is financial 
accountability. Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of the 
organization's governing body and the ability of the prim ary governm ent to im pose its will on the 
organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden relationship. In addition, an organization 
which is fiscally dependent on the prim ary government should be included in its reporting entity. 

These financial statements present the City of Ruston (the primary government) and do not 
include the data of the com ponent units necessary for reporting in conform ity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

B. BASIS O F PRESENTATIO N - FUND ACCO UNTING 

The accounts of the City of Ruston are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, 
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The City utilizes several types of 
1unds and a num ber of discrete 1unds w ithin each fund type. 

Each fund is accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its 
assets, liabilities, fund balance/retained earnings, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. The 
individual funds account for the governm ental resources allocated to them for the purpose of 
carrying on specific activities in accordance w ith laws, regulations, or other restrictions. 

15 



 

CITY O F RUSTON, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM I3ER 30, 1998 

OTE 1- SUM M ARY O F SIGNIF 

(2) 

NG PO LICIES (Con't 

The following funds and account groups are utilized by the City: 

Governm ental Fund T 

Tbese are the funds through w hich m ost governm ental functions typically are financed 
The funds included in this category are as follows: 

a G eneral Fund 

The General Fund is established to account for resources devoted to financing 
the general services that the City perform s for its citizens. G eneral tax revenues 
and other sources of revenue used to finance the fundam ental operations of the 
City are included in this fund. The fund accounts for all activities of the 
governm ent for which a separate fund has not been established. 

b. Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources other than expendable trusts or major capital projects that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

c. _Ca.pital Protect Func!s 

d Debt Serv ice Funds 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accum ulation of resources for 
the paym ent of interest and principal on long-term general obligation debt other 
than those payable from proprietary funds. 

Proorietarv Fund Types 

These funds account for operations that are organized to be self-supporting through 
user charges. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a capital m aintenance focus; 
that is the m easurem ent focus is on determ ination of net incom e. Included in this 
category are the Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds. 

a Enterprise Funds 
Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of 
the governing entity is that the costs of providing goods or serv ices to the 
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered prim arily through 
user charges, or where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determ ination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net incom e is 
appropriate for capital m aintenance, public policy, m anagem ent control, 
accountability, or other purposes. 
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CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NO TES TO FINA NCIA L STA TEM ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 1 - SUM M ARY O F SIG NIFICANT ACCO UNTING PO LICIES (Con 

(3) 

b. Internal Service Funds 

Internal Serv ice Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services 
provided by one departm ent to other departm ents of the City on a 
cost-reim bursem ent basis. 

Fiduciarv Fund Types 

These funds account for assets held by the City as a trustee or agent for other units of 
governm ent, individuals or private organizations. These funds are as follows: 

~ e~9_cy Fund 
The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the governm ent as an agent for 
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. The Agency 
Fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 

(4) Account Groups 
a. General Fixed Assets Account Grouu 

General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for all general fixed assets of the 
City except those accounted for in proprietary funds. 

b. General Lena-Term Debt Account G rouo 

General Long-Term Debt Account Group accounts for the outstanding principal 
balances of general obligation bonds, other long-term obligations and 
com pensated absences not reported in the proprietary funds. 

C. BASIS O F ACCO UNTING 

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to a fund is determ ined by its m easurem ent 
focus. All govern m ental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources 
m easun~nlent focus. That is, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on 

the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other 
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of econom ic resources m easurem ent focus. 
W ith this m easurem ent focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these 
funds are included on the balance sheet. Their fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into 
contributed capital and retained earnings com ponents. Proprietary fund type operating 
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in 
the acceunts and reported in the financial statem ents. Basis of accounting relates to the tim ing 
of the m easurem ents made, regardless of the measurem ent focus applied. 
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CITY OF RUSTO N, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 1 - SUM MARY O F SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING POLICIES (Con 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by all governmental funds (General Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Agency Funds, and Capital Projects Funds). 
Under the m odified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to 
accrual, i.e., both m easurable and available. M easurable m eans the am ount of the transaction 
can be determ ined. Available m eans collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period~ 

Licenses and perm its, charges for services, fines and forfeits, and m iscellaneous revenues are 
recorded as revenues w hen received in cash because they are generally not m easurable until 
actually received. Federal and State grants, general property taxes, self-assessed taxes, and 

investment earnings are recorded when earned (when they are measurable and available). 
Revenues which are susceptible to accrual are property taxes and interest. Property taxes are 
considered m easurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. Interest on investm ents is recorded 
as revenue in the year the interest is earned and is available to pay liabilities of the current 
period. 

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if 
m easurable, except expenditures for debt serv ice, and other long-term obligations which are 
recognized when paid. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues 
are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are recognized when they are 
incurred. Interest on revenue bonds, proceeds of w hich are used in financing the construction 
of certain assets, is capitalized during the construction period net of interest on the; investm ent 
of unexpended bond proceeds. The City applies all applicable Governm ental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements in its proprietary funds, as well as all other 
authoritative pronouncem ents issued prior to Novem ber 30, 1989, unless those 
pronouncem ents conflict or contradict GASB. 

The City reports deferred revenue on its com bined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise 
When a potential revenue does not m eet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for 
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise w hen resources are received by 
the City before it has a legal claim to them , as when grant m onies are received prior to the 
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition 
criteria are m et, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred 
revenue is rem oved from the com bined balance sheet and revenue recognized. 
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CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 1 - SUM MARY O F SIG NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con 

D, BUDG ETARY DATA 

Form al budgetary accounting is em ployed as a m anagem ent control tool for the City. The 
Treasurer's Office com piles for the M ayor estimates of revenues and requests for 
appropriations of the annual budget. Before Septem ber 30, the M ayor's budget is subm itted to 
the Council for possible revision and adoption. The Council conducts public hearings on the 
budget, which m ust be adopted by Septem ber 30 to becom e effective October 1. State law 
provides that in no event shall the total appropriations exceed total anticipated revenues taking 
into acco unt the estim ated surplus or deficit at the end of the current fiscal year. Budgets m ay 
be am ended during the year with Council approval. 

Budgets of the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds are prepared on the m odified 
accrua,r basis of accounting, which is consistent with the m ethod of accounting for such funds. 
Budgetary control is exercised at the departm ental level, with the exception of salaries, regular 
and overtime, which are at the line item level, or by projects. A comparison of budget versus 
actual at the legal level of control is presented for the G eneral Fund in Schedule 1 of the 
Supplem entary Inform ation section of the report. The General Fund is the only fund for which 
the legal level of control is at a lower level than presented in the exhibits which are reported on 
a functional level. Appropriations lapse at year end. 

Form al budgetary integration is used for m anagem ent control in the accounting records during 
the year for the General and certain Special Revenue Funds (Sales Tax Funds, Ruston Parks 
and Recreation Board, State Revenue Sharing, Health and Safety Rehab, and Section 8 
Housing Funds). Formal budgetary integration is not used for Debt Service Funds since 
authorization for paym ent of principal and interest on general long-term debt is provided 
through the bond indentures, and expenditures for these purposes can be exactly determ ined. 
The Capital Project Funds do not have annual budgets, as they are accounted for on a project 
basis. Annual budgets are also adopted for all Enterprise Funds, but are not presented in the 
financial statem ents since they are not required inform ation. 

GASH AND CASH EQ UIVALENTS 

The City pools cash resources of its various funds in order to facilitate the processing of 
accounts payable. Cash applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable, (:;ash in the 
individual funds in excess of current requirem ents is invested in interest bearing securities and 
disclosed as part of the City's investm ents. For the purposes of the Statem ent of Cash Flows, 
cash equivalents for each fund are considered to be highly liquid investm ents with m aturities of 
three m onths or less. Cash and cash equivalents included restricted and unrestricted cash 
accounts. 

F. UNBILLED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Estim ated unbilled revenues from the General, Electric, W ater, and Sewer Funds are 
recognized at the end of each fiscal year on a pro rata basis. The estimated am ount is based 
on billings during the m onth following the close of the fiscal year. 
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NOTES TO FtNANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

TE 1 - SUM M ARY O F SIGNIF LICIES (Con't 

G . INVESTM ENTS 

Investm ents are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. Fair value is the amount at 
which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties 
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Interest is accrued as earned. Louisiana statutes 
perm it the City to invest in United States treasury obligations, obligations of the Government 
agencies which are federally insured, certificates of deposit of state banks having their principal 
office in the State of Louisiana, and in m utual or trust fund institutions which are registered and 
which have underlying investm ents lim ited to securities of the U.S. Governm ent or its agencies. 
The funds of the Deferred Com pensation Fund are invested in m utual funds. 

H. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE 

nterfund transactions are transactions between the different funds 

(2) 

)ue To and Due From Other Funds 

Interfund receivables and payables arising from interfued transactions expected to be 
repaid in the next accounting cycle are recorded by all funds affected in the period in 
which transactions are executed. Interfund Receivables and Payables have not been 
elim inated. 

Advance To and Advance From Other Funds 

Interfund receivables and payables that are not expected to be repaid during the next 
accounting cycle. 

INVENTO RIES 

inventories for all governmental funds are valued at cost using the first in, first out (FIFO) 
m ethod. Reported inventories in these funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, 
which indicates they are unavailable for appropriation even though they are a com ponent of net 
current assets. Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost (FIFO) or 
m arket. 

Inventories are accounted for as assets when purchased and recorded as expenditures or 
expenses as consumed (consumption method). 

PREPAID EXPENSES 

Paym ents m ade to vendors for services that wilt benefit pedods beyond Septem ber 30, 1998 
are recorded as prepaid expenses. 

20 



 

CITY O F RUSTON, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't 

K. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Enterprise Funds, based on certain bond covenants, are required to establish and m aintain 
prescribed amounts of resources (consisting of cash and temporary investments) that can be 
used only to service outstanding debt. Additionally, am ounts received from utility custom ers as 
deposits are carded as restricted assets. 

PRO PERTY PLANT AND EQ U(PM ENT 

Fixed assets used in governm ental fund type operations are accounted for in the General Fixed 
Assets Account Group. Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of 
certain im provem ents other than buildings, such as roads, sidewalks, bridges and drainage 
im provem ents are not capitalized. 

Fixed assets acquired or constructed for general governm ental operations are recorded as 
expenditures in the fund making the expenditure and capitalized at cost in the General Fixed 
Assets Account G roup. Depreciation is not recorded in the G eneral Fixed Assets Account 
G roup. 

Property', plant and equipm ent acquired for proprietary funds is capitalized in the respective 
funds to which it applies. 

Property, plant and equipm ent is stated at cost except assets acquired by gift or bequest w hich 
are recorded at their fair m arket value on the date of transfer, 

The costs of norm al m aintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
m aterially extend the asset lives are not capitalized. Im provem ents are capita]ized and 
depreciated over the rem aining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable. 
. = 

Depreciation of exhaustible fixed assets purchased by proprietary funds is charged as an 
expense against operations, and accum ulated depreciation is reported on the proprietary funds' 
balance sheets. That portion of depreciation expense applicable to assets acquired with grants, 
entitlem ents and shared revenues is reflected as a reduction of the respective contributed 
capital account. Depreciation has been provided over the estim ated useful lives using the 
straight-line m ethod of depreciation. 

M . LO NG-TERM DEBT 

Long-term general obligations of the City are reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account 
Group. Long-term liabilities for revenue bonds and certificates of indebtedness are reported in 
the appropriate proprietary fund. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

TE 1 - SUM MARY O F SIGNIFIC 

N. FUND EQ UITY 

LICIES (Con't 

Contributed capital is recorded in proprietary funds that have received capital grants and 
contributions from developers, custom ers, or other funds. 

Depreciation on assets acquired by contributions from grants is charged against contributions 

Reserve for Inventories 

These reserves were created to represent the portion of the fund balance that is not available 
for expenditure even though inventories are a com ponent of net current assets. 

Reserve for Debt Service 

These reserves segregate a portion of fund balance/retained earnings for debt serv ice. These 
reservations are established to satisfy restrictions im posed by various bond agreem ents. The 
unreserv ed portion of fund balance designated for subsequent years' expenditures indicates the 
balance has been legally authorized to make up the following years' budget. 

O . INTERFUND TRANSACTIO NS 

Q uasi-extem a{ transactions, such as the transfers to the ir~ternat service funds, are accounted 
for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute reim bursem ents to a 
fund are, recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reim bursing fund and as reductions of 
expenditure/expenses in the fund that is reim bursed. All other interfund transactions are 
reported as operating transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine perm anent transfers of equity are 

reported as residual equity transfers. 

P. PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 

Property taxes levied are based on the assessed value of property as listed on the previous 
Decem ber 31. Assessed values are an approximation of m arket value. A revaluation of all real 
property ,must be m ade every four years. The last revaluation date was January 1, 1996. 

Property taxes are recognized as revenue when they are corrected. Taxes are either cotlected 
or adjudk;ated each year by September 30. Therefore, there are generally no unpaid property 
taxes at year end. 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINA NCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 1 - SUM MARY O F SIG NIFICANT ACCO UNTING POLICIES /Con 

Q . VACATIO N. SICK LEAVE AND OTHER COM PENSATED ABSENCES 

City em ployees are entitled to certain com pensated absences based on their length of 
em ploym ent. Com pensated absences for vacation pay does vest and accum ulate. The 
m axim um vacation hours that can be accum ulated or earned shall not exceed that for a tw o 
year period (four weeks, six weeks, or eight weeks - depending on the employee's years of 
employment). Employees are permitted to use sick leave toward retirement up to a maximum 
of six m onths, if they have sufficient tim e to qualify for retirem ent. Only unpaid vacation pay for 
the em ployees has been accrued, and sick leave for the em ployees eligible for retirem ent 
benefits has been accrued. All other sick leave is recorded as an expenditure when paid. 

R. M EM ORANDUM ONLY - TOTAL COLUM NS 

Total colum ns on the general purpose financial statem ents are captioned "m em orandum only" 
to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate additional analysis. Data in these colum ns 
do not present financial position, results of operations or changes in financial position in 
conform ity with generally accepted accounting principles, nor is such data com parable to a 
consolidation. Interfund elim inations have not been m ade in aggregation of this data. 

S. G RANTS FRO M OTHER GOVERNM ENTAL AGENCIES 

Federal and state governm ental agencies represent an im portant source of supplem ental 
funding to finance rent assistance, construction program s and other activities beneficial to the 
com m unity. These funds, prim arily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General, Special 
Revenues, and Capital Projects Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the city has a right 
to reim bursem ent under the related grant. The grants norm ally specify the purpose for which 
the fund may be used and are subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative. 

T. CLAIM S AND JUDG EM ENTS 

Claims send judgements are recorded as expenditures in the appropriate internal service fund. 
GASB Statem ent 10 is followed in accruing the liabilities. An expense is accrued when 
inform ation is available that it is probable a liability has been incurred, and the am ount is 
reasonably estim atable. 

U. CAPITA[_ I_.EASES 

Capital leases are recorded in governm ental funds as expenditures and other financing sources 
at inception at an amount equal to the present value of m inim um lease paym ents. The asset is 
recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group and the related debt in the General Long- 
Term Debt Account Group. In proprietary funds, capital leases are recorded as assets and 
liabilities at inception within the funds at an am ount equal to the present value of m inim um 
lease paym ents. 



 

CITY OF RUSTO N, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 2 - STEW ARDSHIP CO M PLIANCE & ACCO UNTABILITY 

A. FINANCE RELATED LEGAL AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIO NS 

There are a num ber of lim itations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. No 
m aterial violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions occurred during the year. 

B. DEFICIT FUND BALANCE O F INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

At September 30, 1998, the Central Shop Construction Capital Project Fund had a deficit of 
$10,548. This fund deficit is expected to be removed by subsequent year's transfers. The Fire 
Station Construction Capital Project Fund had a deficit of $15,803. The fund deficit is expected 
to be removed by subsequent year's transfers. The Hazard M itigation Grant Fund had a deficit 
of $57,2!43. The fund deficit will be removed by requests for reimbursements from the grantor. 
The General Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund had a deficit at year end of $289,620. This 
deficit is expected to be funded by fees charged in subsequent years. The 
Purchasing/W arehouse Fund had a deficit at year end of $11,354. This fund deficit is expected 
to be rernoved by subsequent year's transfer. 

C. EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS O F APPRO PRIATIO NS 

985 Sales Tax Fund 

O perating Transfer O ut 

1990 Sales Tax Fund 

O perating Transfer O ut 

Park & Recreation 

Utilities 
Telephone 
Dues & Subscriptions 
/Vledical Supplies & Serv ices 
O perating Transfer O ut 

Section 8 Existina Housina 

General Governm ent 

General Fund 

G eneral G overnm ent 

Executive 
Em ployee Benefits FICA Tax 
Printing of Form s 
Supplies 
nsurance 

OVER BUDGET 

$ 4,897 

1.000 

6,609 
353 
17 
36 

26.912 

119.614 

308 
348 
280 
531 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 2 - STEW ARDSHIP CO M PLIANCE & ACCOUNTABILITY (Con't 

W arehouse 
Capital O utlay 

City Court: 
Telephone 

W ard M arshal: 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA 
Postage 

City Hall Building & Grounds 
Salaries 
Training of Personnel 
Medical Supplies & Services 

Tourism & Prom otions: 
M ainstreet Fagade Expense 

Section 8 Housing 
Telephone 
Travel 

Public Safety 

Police Departm ent: 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Salaries - DW I Enforcem ent 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Training of Personnel 
Utilities 
Insurance 

Postage 

Fire Departm ent: 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Auto Allowance 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Utilities 

Probation Office: 
Salaries - Overtim e 

25 

8,000 
54.895 

397 

734 
39 
21 

$ 1,200 
86 
73 

10.000 

4,117 
1.644 

2,646 
1,743 
527 

3,343 
1,496 
2,169 
28,850 

529 

908 
482 
75 
370 
894 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEA R ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 2 - STEW ARDSHIP CO M PLIANCE & ACCO UNTABILITY tCon't 

Public W orks 

Streets 

Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Telephone 

Salaries - Overtim e 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
M aintenance of Streets 
Capital O utlay 

Solid W aste: 
Salaries - Overtime 
Supplies/Training 
Bad Debt Expenditure 
Capital O utlay 

Engineering: 
Salaries 

Repair Shop: 
Medical Supply & Services 

Anim al Control: 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Supplies 

Com m unity Developm ent: 
Salaries - Contract Labor 
Telephone 
M iscellaneous 

nspections: 
Salaries - Regular 
Em ployee Benefits- FICA 
Telephone 
Postage 

853 
278 

$ 838 
199 

2,859 
360.905 

44.8 
574 

16,000 
80.106 

265 

189 
118 

191 
87 

3.357 

4,228 
172 
59 
146 



 

CITY OF RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEA R ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NO TE 3 - CASH AND INVESTM ENTS 

A. ~ osits 

All deposits of the City are held by area financial institution,s. At Septem ber 30, 1998, the 
carrying amount of the City's deposits was $14,511,884 and the bank balance was $15,274,488 
This difference is due to outstanding checks and deposits in transit at Septem ber 30, 1998. 
The City's deposits at year end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk 
assum ed by the City at year end. Category 1 includes deposits that are insured or 
collateralized with securities held by the entity or by its agent in the entity's nam e. Category 2 
include.,; deposits collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust 
departm ent or agent in the entity's nam e. Category 3 deposits are uncollateralized. 

Investm ents 

Category 1 
Category 2 
Category 3 

09-30-98 
Bank Balances 
$ 15,022.319 

252,169 
$ 15,274,488 

The City's investm ents at year end are categorized below to give an indication of the level of 
risk assum ed by the City at year end. Category 1 includes investm ents that are insured or 
registered or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. 
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held 
by the counterparty's trust departm ent or agent in the City's nam e. Category 3 includes 
uninsured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or 
by its trust departm ent or agent but not in the City's nam e. 

U.S. govern m ent and U.S 
governm ent agency 
securities 
M utual Funds 

Louisiana Asset 
M anagem ent Poo 
Total Investm ents 

Total Deposits 

Total Cash, Cash 
Equivalents & Investm ents 

CATEG ORY 

2 3 

Carrying Am ount 
& Fair Value 

$ 1,616,181 
2.042,336 

1!,2_30,257 
4,688,774 

1.~4 511,884 

$~ o0,658 

The investm ents in m utual funds and the Louisiana Asset M anagem ent Pool are not categorized 
because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form . 
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NOTES TO FINA NCIA L STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NO TE 3 - CASH A ND INVESTM ENTS (Con 

Louisiana Asset Management Pool ("LAMP"), a local government investment pool, is administered by 
LAM P, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which was 
formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer in 1993. W hile LAM P is not required to be a registered 
investm ent cornpany under the Investm ent Com pany Act of 1940, its investm ent policies are sim ilar to 
those established by Rule 2-a7, which governs registered money market funds. The primary objective 
of LAM P is to provide a safe environm ent for the placem ent of public funds in short-term , high-quality 
investm ents. -i-he LAM P portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local 
governm ents in Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, LAM P investm ents are restricted to 
securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. Governm ent, or one of its 
agencies, enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase agreem ents collateralized by those 
securities. The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAM P assets is restricted to not more that 
90 days, and consists of no securities with a m aturity in excess of 397 days. The fair m arket value of 
investm ents is determ ined on a weekly basis to m onitor any variances between am ortized cost and 
m arket value. For purposes of determ ining participants' shares, investm ents are valued at amortized 
cost. LAM P is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants im m ediate access to their account 
balances. 

NOTE 4 - PRO PERTY TAX ES 

Property taxes; are assessed and collected on a calendar year. Property taxes attach as an 
enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Tax notices are usually m ailed in Novem ber each year 
and becom e delinquent after Decem ber 31 of that year. 

All property taxes are recognized in compliance with NCGA Interpretation-3 (Revenue Recognition - 
Property Taxes) which states that such revenue is recorded when it becomes measurable and 
available. Available m eans collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998, 
taxes of 9.84 mills were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling $83,331,g20 and were 
dedicated as follow s: 

- General Fund 
Recreation Tax 

Total taxes levied were $819.985. 

6.84 M ills 
3.00 m ills 

State Law requires the Sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the assessm ent is 
m ade. If taxes are not paid by the due date, taxes bear interest at the rate of one and one-fourth 

percent per month until the taxes are paid (LRS 47:2101). 

After notice is given to the delinquent taxpayers, the Sheriff is required by the Constitution of the State 
of Louisiana to sell the least quantity of property necessary to settle the taxes and interest owed (LRS 
47:2181). 
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NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIA NA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

DUE FRO MFrO OTHER F 

As of Septem ber 30, 1998, interfund receivables and payables that resulted from various 
interfund transactions were as follows: 

General Fund 

Special Revenue Funds: 
1968 Sales Tax 

1985 Sales Tax 
1990 Sales Tax 
Ruston Parks & Recreation Board 
Section 8 Existing Housing 
Section 8 Modrehab Housing 
Section 8 Voucher Housing 

Capital Projects: 
Central Shop Construction 
I--ire Station Construction 
Park & Rec 
Hazard M itigation Grant 

Enterprise Funds: 
Electrical System 
W ater System 
Sewerage System 
Ruston Airport Authority 
Am bulance 

eternal Service Funds: 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
G eneral Insurance 
Purchasing/W arehouse Fund 

Totals 

B. ACCO UNTS RECEIV 

Electric 
W ater 
Sewer 
Am bulance 
Totals 

TOTAL 
RECEIVABLES 
$ 907,983 
158,284 
167,400 
427 118 

$1,660~785 

Due from Other Funds 
$ 2,398.318 

532,216 
354,878 
25,190 
65,408 
26.864 

-- 4 

68,196 
288,440 
267,609 

4,503 

97,736 
-- 4 

Due to Other Funds 
$ -- 

1,212,437 

770,414 
399,202 
6,456 
18,675 
14,928 
81.979 

3,500 
33,763 
1,322 

72.982 

821,412 
7,259 
14,750 
109,451 
124.273 

3,409 
426,865 

__ _ 6,281 

~4,129,358 4~ 29,358 

ALLOW ANCE FO R 
DO UBTFUL 
ACCOUNTS 
$ 143.101 

22,588 
31,229 
305,274 

L 5o2,192 

OTE 6 - DUE FRO M OTHER GOVERNM ENTAL UNITS 

Enterprise Funds 

Am bulance Fund 
Lincoln Parish Police Jury Am bulance 

NET 
RECEIVABLES 
$ 764,882 
135,696 
136,171 
121,644 

L 140,0@  



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIA NA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 7 - CHANG ES IN FIXED ASSETS 

A sum mary of changes in general fixed assets follows 

Land 

Buildings 

Im provem ents O ther 
Than Buildings 

Equipm ent 

Totals 

Balance 
10-01-97 

$ 778,859 

4.152.026 

4.237.569 

7,720,782 

$16,889,236 

Additions 

$ -- 

1,936 

890,267 

$ 892,203 

A sum m ary of fixed assets of all proprietary funds is presented below: 

Description 

Land 

Buildings 

System 
Im provem ent 
Equipm ent 

Runways, Aprons 
and Taxiways 
Construction in 
Progress 

Electrical 
System 

53,506 

2,064,336 

13,866,802 
16.889.270 

W ater 
System 

75,070 

173.078 

7,357,755 
527.135 

Sew er 
System 

140,256 

15.587.250 

809,505 
112.767 

Adjustments and 
Deductions 

<6,400~ 

$ <6,400~ 

Airport 
A uthority 

138,239 

407,215 

51,155 

4,429,630 

121,245 

Balance 
09-30-98 

$778,859 

4.152.026 

4,239,505 

$8,6046~ 949 

$17,7750~O3939 

Am bu|ance 
Service Total 

390,846 797,917 

- - 18.231.879 

22,085,217 
17.529,172 

4,429,630 

121.245 

TotaL_ 32,873,914 8.133.038 16,649.778 5,147,484 390,846 63,195,060 

Accum ulated 
Depreciation ~_22,740,435) ~_3,828,103) (6,241,390~ I725,478) 

Net Fixed Assets 1.$j~_1_33,479 .,~4,304,935 $10,408,388 $4,422,006 

.(250,696) 3~ 66,102) 

.$140,150 $29,408,g5.8 

The estim ated useful lives of proprietary fund property, plant and equipm ent are as follows 

Buildings 
Im provem ents 
Equipm ent 

20-50 Years 
20-50 Years 
4-20 Years 

Depreciation expense in the proprietary funds amounted to $2,158,625 for the fiscal year 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NO TE 8 - PENSIO N CO STS 

M unicioal Em r~lovees' Retirem ent Svstem 

Plan Descripticjn. Substantially all full-tim e em ployees except police and firem en of the City of Ruston 

are covered under the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, (the "System") a cost 
sharing m ultiple em ployer public em ployee retirem ent system , controlled and adm inistered by the 
Board of Trustees of the System . The System is m andatory for all em ployees who are em ployed on a 
perm anent basis working at least 35 hours per week. Benefits are established by State statutes. The 
System issues, a publicly available financial report that includes financial statem ents and required 
supplem entary inform ation. That report m ay be obtained by writing the Board of Trustees, 7937 Office 
Park Blvd., Balon Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (504) 925-4810. 

Funding Policy. Covered em ployees are required to contribute 9.25% of their annual com pensation and 
the City is required to contribute 5.75% of annual com pensation. The contribution requirements are 
established and m ay be am ended by State statute. The City's contributions to the System for the 
years ending September 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996 were $259,612, $288,118, and $286,291, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. At Septem ber 30, 1998, there is no net 
pension obligation. 

Statewide Firefiehter's Retirem ent System (SFRS 

Plan Descriptien. The City of Ruston contributes to the Statewide Firefighter's Retirement System of 
Louisiana, a cost sharing m ultiple em ployer defined benefit pension plan adm inistered by the 
Firefighter's Retirem ent System . SFRS covers firefighters em ployed by any m unicipality, parish, or fire 
protection district of the State of Louisiana under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:2251 
through 2269 effective January 1, 1980. Benefits are established by State statutes. The SFRS issues 
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statem ents and required supplem entary 
inform ation. ]hat report m ay be obtained by writing the Board of Trustees, Firefighters' Retirem ent 
System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 210, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70808-4136 or by calling (504) 
925-4060. 

Fundinq Policy. Covered em ployees are required to contribute 8% of their annual com pensation and 
the City_is required to contribute 9% of annual com pensation excluding overtim e but including State 
supplem ental pay. The contribution requirem ents are established and m ay be am ended by State 
statute. The City's contributions to SFRS for the years ending Septem ber 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996 
were $101,469, $114,222, and $102,706, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each 
year. At Septem ber 30, 1998, there is no net pension obligation. 

M unicipal Police Em elovees Retirem ent System (M PERS 

Plan Descriptioq. The City of Ruston contributes to the M unicipal Police Em ployees Retirement 
System Pension Plan, a cost sharing m ultiple em ployer defined benefit pension plan adm inistered by 
the M unicipal Police Em ployees' Retirem ent System . M PERS covers any full-tim e police officer, 

empowered to make arrests, employed by any municipality of the State and engaged in law 
enforcement, earning at least $375 per month excluding state supplemental pay, or an elected Chief of 
Police whose salary is at least $100 per month, and any employee of this system may participate in the 
M PERS. Benefits are established by State statutes. The M PERS issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statem ents and required supplem entary inform ation. That report m ay be 
obtained by writing the Board of Trustees of the M unicipal Police Em ployees' Retirem ent System , 8401 
United Plaza Blvd., Room 305, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70806 or by calling 1-800-443-4248. 
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CITY O F RUSTON, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINA NCIAL STATEM ENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 8 - PENSIO N CO STS (Con't 

Fundinq Policy. Plan m em bers are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual com pensation and the 
City is required to contribute 9% of annual com pensation excluding overtim e but including State 
supplem ental pay. The contribution requirem ents are established and m ay be amended by State 
statute. The City's contributions to M PERS for the years ending Septem ber 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996 
were $109,744, $112,939, and $99,363, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
At Septem ber :30, 1998, there is no net pension obligation. 

NOTE 9 - RISK M ANAG EM ENT 

W orker's Com pensation 

The City established a lim ited risk m anagem ent program for worker's com pensation in 1988. 
Prem ium s are paid into the W orkm en's Com pensation Self Insurance Fund by other funds and are 
available to pay claim s, claim reserves, and adm inistrative costs of the program . During the year 
ended September 30, 1998, a total of $164,540 was paid in benefits and administrative costs. An 
excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $150,000. Reported claims of 
$238,528 have been accrued as a liability based upon the service company's loss reserve report. 
Interfund prem ium s are based upon the approxim ate prem ium . Paym ents to the worker's 
com pensation fund are accounted for as an expenditure of the paying fund. The W orkm en's 
Compensation Self Insurance Fund has a retained earnings balance of $352,924 at September 30, 
1998. This balance has been accum ulated for future potential catastrophic losses. There were no 
reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. No claim s exceeded the City's 
insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years. 

G eneral Self Insurance 

The City established a lim ited risk m anagement program for em ployee m edical coverage in 1988. 
Am ounts paid into the General Self Insurance Fund stem from em ployee contributions, payments by 
retired em ployees, and paym ents by other funds, and are available to pay claim s, claim reserves and 
administrative costs of the program. During the year ended September 30, 1998, a total of $1,402,917 
was paid in benefits and administrative costs. The insurance fund has a deficit of $289,620 at 
Septem ber 30, 1998. An excess coverage co-insurance policy covers individual claim s in excess of 
$80,O00-per calendar year. Incurred but not reported claims of $98,344 have been accrued as a 
liability based upon 

inform ation provided by the claim s adm inistrators. Interfund paym ents are based on total operating 
expenses m inus em ployee contributions and paym ents by retired em ployees. Paym ents to the agency 
fund are accounted for as an expenditure of the paying fund. There w ere no reductions in insurance 
coverage from coverage in the prior year. No claim s exceeded the City's insurance coverage for each 
of the past three fiscal years. 

A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for self-insured claim s are as follows 

1997 
1998 

Balance 
October1 

$159,074 
$261,614 

Balance 
Additions Deductions Septem ber 30 

$1,625,386 
$1,567,457 

$1,522,846 
$1,492,199 

$261,614 
$336,872 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIA L STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 10 - LO NG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a sum m ary of the City's long-term debt transactions for the year ended Septem ber 30 
1998. 

General Obligations 

Balance 10-01-97 

Additions 

Retirem ents & 
Paym ents 

Balance 9-30-98 

Certificates of 
Indebtedness 
$1,547,000 

Police Pension 
Fund Liability 
$435,597 

(191,000) (64,111) 

Com pensated 
Absences 
$629,635 

Capital 
Leases 

$485,429 
Total 

$3.097,661 

95.650 442.070 537.720 

(110,135) (365,246) 

Payments for maturing certificates of indebtedness of $150,000 were from the Debt Service Fund and 
payments of $41,000 were from the General Fund. 

Bonds and certificates of indebtedness payable at Septem ber 30, 1998, are com prised of the following 
individual issues: 

General O bliaation Certificate of Indebtedness 
O utstanding 
09-30-98 

$1,100,000 1993 Certificate of Indebtedness dated 4-1-93, due in 
annual installments of $110,000 to $135,000 through 4-1-03, interest at 
4.7% to 5.1% (this issue is secured by pledge and dedication of the 
excess of annual revenue of the City of Ruston) $ 605,000 

$500,000 - 1996 Certificate of Indebtedness dated 5-23-96, due in 
annual installments of $43,000 to $62,000 through 5-1-06, interest at 
5.48% (this issue is secured by pledge and dedication of the excess of 421,000 

annual revenue of the City of Ruston) 

$500,000 - 1993 A Certificate of Indebtedness dated 3-1-94, due in 
annual installments of $50,000 to $60,000 through 3-1-04, interest at 
4.9% to 5.6% (this issue is secured by pledge and dedication of the 
excess of annual revenue of the City of Ruston.) 

Total General Obligation Certificates of Indebtedness 

Revenue Bonds 

330.000 

$4,500,000 authorized 1990 Sewer Revenue Bonds, $3,204,747 issued, 
interest at 5.0% , payable in annual installments of $125,000 to $245,000 
through O ctober 1,2012 2,695,000 
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NOTES TO FINA NCIA L STATEM ENTS 

FO R THE YEA R ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 10-- LO NG-TERM DEBT (Con't 

$1,620,00,3 authorized 1993 Sewer Revenue Bonds $1,432,536 issued, 
interest at 2.45% , payable in installm ents over not more than 20 years 
after the com pletion date. 1,237,836 

$850,000 1996 W ater Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds dated 12-23-96 
due in annual installments of $75,000 to $110,000 through October 1, 
2006, interest at 4.5850% to 5.079% . Refunding resulted in a deferred 
loss of $25,650 which is being amortized over the life of the debt. Net 
deferred loss at 9/30/98 was $18,134. 776,866 

Certificates of Indebtedness 

$1,040,000 1989 Certificates of Indebtedness dated 1-1-89, due in 
annual installments of $150,000 through 1-1-99, interest at 7.95% (this 
issue is secured by pledge and dedication of the excess of annual 
revenues of the City of Ruston). 150,000 

Total Enterurise Funds Bonds and Certificate of Indebtedness 

The annual requirem ents to am ortize all bonded debt outstanding as of Septem ber 30, 1998, including 
interest payments of $2,033,835 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
Septem ber30 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Thereafter 

Total Principal 

Total Interest 

Total Future Requirem ents 

Cedificates 
oflndebtedness 
$ 353,000 

211,000 
223,000 
231,000 
249,000 
239,000 

$1,506,000 

265 447 

$1,771,447 

Enterprise 
Revenue Bonds 

$270,000 
275,000 
290,000 
305,000 
310,000 

3,277,536 

$4,727,536 
1,768,388 

$6,495,924 

The annual requirem ents to am ortize the liability for the Police Pension Fund as of Septem ber 30 
1998, includincl interest payments of $59,225 are as follows: 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

Total 

$ 90,676 

90,676 

90,676 

90,676 

68,007 

$430,71! 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIA NA 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

NOTE 10 - LO NG -TERM DEBT (Con't 

The amount of long-term debt that can be incurred by the City is lim ited by state statute. State law 
allows a m axim um of 10% of the assessed valuation of bonded debt for any one purpose or 35% of the 
total assessed value for all purposes. The City assessed property value at Decem ber 31, 1998, was 
$83,331,920. The maxim um debt allowable for any one purpose and total debt allowable by state law 
as of December 31, 1998, is $8,333,192 and $29,166,172 respectively. The City currently has 
$1,506,000 of !general bonded debt outstanding. 

All outstanding revenue bonds are secured by a first lien on net revenues earned by Enterprise Funds. 
Net revenues are defined in the revenue bond agreements. There are a num ber of lim itations and 
restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in com pliance with all significant 
lim itations and restrictions. 

During December 1996, the City issued $850,000 in Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds to advance 
refund $855,000 of outstanding 1986 Utilities Revenue Bonds. The proceeds, net of issuance costs, 
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service 
paym ents on tile 1986 Utilities Revenue Bonds. The 1986 Utilities Revenue Bonds are considered to 
be defeased and have been rem oved from the City's financial statem ents. The principal outstanding at 
September 30, 1998 on the bonds refunded was $795,000. 

NOTE 11 - CAPITAL LEASES 

The City of Ruston has financed the acquisition of com puter hardware and software for its utility billing 
system and financial system inform ation. The City has also financed the acquisition of six garbage 
trucks, a street ,,;weeper, tw o excavators and a 544 Loader for the Public W orks Departm ent. These 
lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes (title transfers at the end of the 
lease terms). The value of the fixed assets recorded in the Electric Fund is $242,608 and the 
equipm ent was placed in service at Septem ber 30, 1993, and Septem ber 30, 1997. The value of the 
fixed assets recorded in the W ater Fund is $51,954 and the equipment was placed in service at 
Septem ber 19!)7. 

The folio-wing is a schedule of the future m inim um lease paym ents under the capital lease 

ENTERPRISE FUND (ELECTRIC & WATER SYSTEM) 
Year Ending 09/30 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

Total 

M inim um Lease Pavm en 
$ 47,071 

43,563 

43,563 

40,755 

_ 4,109 

$179,061 

35 

Principal Paym ent 
$ 39,442 

37,947 

40,045 

39,450 

4,050 

$160,934 
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GENERAL LO NG-TERM DEBT ACCO UNT GRO UP 

Year Ending 09/30 
1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

Total 

M inim um Lease Pavm en 
$ 221,468 
221,468 

197,506 

127,926 

48 996 

$817,364 

NOTE 12 - SEG M ENT INFO RMATIO N - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Principal Paym ent 
$ 183,326 
194.353 

181,719 

121,697 

48,030 

$729,125 

The City operates a Utilities System , an Airport Authority, and an Am bulance Service. The Utilities 
System provides electric, water and sewerage serv ices to the residents of the City of Rusten. The 
Airport Authority accounts for the revenue and expenses of Ruston M unicipal Airport. The Am bulance 
Serv ice provides the residents of Lincoln Parish, Louisiana with em ergency m edical services. 

Segm ent inform ation for Utilities System s, Airport Authority, and Am bulance Service for the fiscal year 
ended Septem ber 30, 1998, is as follows: 

O perating Revenue 

Depreciation 

Operating Incom e 
(Loss) 
O perating Transfers 
In(Out)._ 

Net Income (Loss) 
Fixed Asset - 
Additions 

Total Assets 

Revenue Bonds 
Payable 

Certificates of 
Indebtedness 

Electric 
System 

$14,603,281 

W ater 
System 

$1,585,856 

1,118,284 292,216 

Sewerage 
System 

$2,051,738 

494.351 

Airport 
Authority 
$ 15,473 

207.812 

Am bulance Total 
Service Enterprises 
$668,309 $18,924,657 

45.962 2.158.625 

2,393,110 416,917 570,571 (211,984) 72,226 3,240,840 

(1,057,194) 

1.658.438 

573,792 

20.088.559 

(13,830) 

319,541 324,487 (209,236) 

116,950 

6.382.572 

240,503 

t4,005,261 

776.866 3.932.536 

150.000 

121,246 

4.529.928 

74,491 

12,285 

543.164 

(1,071,024) 

2.167.721 

1,064,776 

45.549.484 

4.709.402 

150.000 

Total Contributed 
Capital and Relained 
Earnings 16,999,629 5,429,048 9,624,068 4,417,681 418,631 36,889,057 

Net W orking Capital $ 7,095,944 $1,757,426 $ 2,785,489 $ (4,325) $ 278,481 $11,913,015 
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NO TE 13 - C O NTR IBUTED CA PITA L - ENTER PR ISE FUN DS 

Changes in contributed capital during were as follows 

Balance, Beginning of 
Year 
Contributions - 
Federal/State G rants 
Less: Depreciation 

Balance. End of Year 

Electrical 
System 

$325,128 

W aterwork 
s System 

$777,611 

Sewerage 
System 

$5,456,973 

Airport 
System 

$3,865,657 

59,877 15,273 
(11,830) (203,668~ (224,748) 

Am bulanc 
e System Total 

$87,055 $10,512,424 

75,150 
(440,246) 

$325,128 $ 825,658 $ 5,253,305 $.._3,656,182 $ 87,055 $10,147,32~! 

NO TE 14 - IN-i-ERFUND TRANSFERS 

Operating Transfers In and O ut are listed by fund type for the year 

G eneral Fund 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Sales Tax Funds 

1968 Sales Tax Fund 
1985 Sales Tax Fund 
1990 Sales Tax Fund 

Ruston Parks & Recreation Board 

Total Special Revenue Funds 

Debt Service Fund 

Enterprise Funds: 
Electrical System 

_ . W ater System 

Total Enterprise Funds 

Total Operating Transfers In and Out 

Transfer In 

$ 5,838,199 

221.996 

7rans~r Out 

$ 42,500 

$ 221,996 $ 5,152,919 

206,248 

NOTE 15 - CO M PENSATIO N PAID TO CITY CO UNCIL M EM BERS 

Per diem paid lo the City Council m em bers for the current year is as follows 

Elm ore D. M ayfield 
Troy Sm alling 
Pat Cardwell 
Levell Thurman 
Law rence Sm ith 

37 

$4,80O 
4,800 
4,800 
4,800 
4,800 

$24,000 

$ 1,057,194 
$ 13,830 

1,071,024 

$ 6,266,443 
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NOTE 16 - SUM MARY DISCLOSURE O F SIG NIFICANT CO NTING ENCIES 

Litiqation 

The City is de~endant in several lawsuits in which the outcome is uncertain at the present time. In the 
opinion of the City Attorney, the City's ultim ate exposure will not have a m aterial adverse effect on the 
financial condition of the City. The City believes they are adequately covered by insurance should the 
Court find in favor of the plaintiffs. Managem ent of the City, including the City Attorney, are not aware 
of any liability that should be recorded under Financial Accounting Standard No. 5. 

Federally Assisted Proaram s 

The City receives financial assistance from Federal and State governm ental agencies in the form of 
grants. The disbursem ents of funds received under these program s generally requires com pliance 
with term s and conditions specified in the grant agreements. The program s are audited in accordance 
with the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 and are subject to further examination by 
the grantor agency. 

NOTE 17 - DEFERRED CO M PENSATIO N PLAN 

The City offers its em ployees a deferred com pensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City em ployees, perm its them to defer a portion 
of their salary until future years. The deferred com pensation is not available to em ployees until 
term ination, retirem ent, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 

All am ounts of com pensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those 
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are(until paid or made 
available to the, employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the government subject 
only to the claim s of the governm ent's general creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal 
to those of the general creditors of the government in an amount equal to the fair m arket value of the 
deferred account for each participant. 

It is the 6pinion of m anagem ent that the City has no liability for losses under the plan. It is the intent of 
m anagem ent that the deferred amounts will ultim ately be paid to the em ployees. Management also 
believes that the assets will not be used to satisfy the claims of general creditors. 

Governm ental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans requires governments to report 
Section 457 plans in their financial statem ents as an expendable trust fund if they m eet the criteria in 
NCGA Statement 1, paragraph 26(3)(8). Legislation passed states that plans will not be eligible plans 
unless all assets and incom e of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants 
and their beneficiaries. Existing plans are required to com ply with this requirem ent by January 1, 1999. 
The provisions of this statement and the new law requirements had not been im plem ented as of 
Septem ber 30, 1998; therefore, the assets and associated liability of the deferred com pensation plan 
are still reported as an agency fund of the City. 
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NOTE 18 - PO ST-EM PLOYM ENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 

In addition to the pension benefits described in note 8, the City provides post-retirem ent health 
care benefits, in accordance w ith state statutes, to all retiring em ployees w ho were participating 
in the group health insurance plan prior to their retirem ent date. The City is self-insured for 
m edicail benefits including post-retirement health care benefits. Currently, there are 90 retirees 
receiving such benefits. During 1998, expenditures of $211,425 were recognized for post- 
retirem ent health care. The expense is recognized when costs are incurred. The costs are 
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. At year-end, an estim ate is m ade for incurred but not 
reported claim s. 

NOTE 19 - YEAR 2000 ISSUES (unaudited 

The City is currently addressing Year 2000 issues relating to its com puter system s and other 
electronic equipm ent. The Year 2000 issue refers to the fact that m any com puter program s use 
only the last two digits to refer to a year. Therefore, both 1900 and 2000 would be referred to 
as "00". Computer programs have to be adjusted to recognize the difference between those 
two years or the program s w ill fail or create errors. Also, som e program s m ay not be able to 
recognize that 2000 is a leap year. Further, the Year 2000 issue could affect electronic 
equipm ent - such as environm ental systems and vehicles - containing com puter chips that 
have date recognition features. 

The City has com pleted a partial inventory of com puter system s and other electronic equipm ent 
that m ay be affected by the Year 2000 issue and that are necessary to conducting City 
operations. The City has initially identified public safety, financial adm inistration and public 

works (water/sewer/electrical) as mission critical systems. 

The Cily has com pleted the awareness and assessm ent stage of work with respect to its 
financial adm inistration system whereby a plan has been established for dealing with these 
issues and system s have been identified which are in need of Year 2000 com pliance work. The 
City is currently within the rem ediation stage, during which changes are being made to systems 
and equipm ent. The costs associated with these changes are being funded on a pay as you go 
b~sis. Certain of these changes require com m itm ents w ith vendors for assistance in 
addressing Year 2000 issues. As of Septem ber 30, 1998, the am ount of those com m itm ents is 
$31,400. The validation and testing phase of the work is targeted to be completed by 
Septem ber 30, 1999. The City has not com pleted the awareness stage with respect to its other 
m ission critical system s and non-m ission initial system s. 

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of 
related rem ediation efforts will not be fully determ inable until the Year 2000 and thereafter. 
M anagem ent cannot assure that the City is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the City's 
rem ediation efforts w ill be successful in whole or in part, or that parties w ith whom the City does 
business will be Year 2000 ready. 

The City has not com pleted the awareness stage with respect to its other m ission critical 
system .,; and non-m ission initial system s. 
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CO M BINING , INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCO UNT 
G RO UP STATEM ENTS AND SCHEDULES 



 

G ENERAL FUND 

The General F~and accounts for resources traditionally associated with governm ent which are not 
required legally or by sound financial m anagem ent to be accounted for in another fund. 

42 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit A-1 
G ENERAL FUND 

CO M PARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS 
SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 A ND 1997 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
Unbilled Revenues 
Travel Advances 
Due from O ther Funds 
Due from Other Governm ental Units 
Inventories, at C ost 

Total Assets 

LIA BILITIES A ND FUND BALA NC E 
Liabilities: 
A ccounts Payable 
Deposits 
Due to O ther Funds 
Due to, O ther G overnm ental Units 
Accrued Salaries 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Reserved for Inventories 
Reserv ed for Debt Serv ice 
Unreserved - Undesignated 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

1998 

$798,936 
266,470 
59~316 

645 
2,398,318 

29,550 

$3,553,235 

$656,950 
2,421 

3,333 
57,723 

722.427 

29,550 
35.437 

2.765.821 

2,830,808 

$3,553,235 
~ = = = = = = = = = = ~ = =  

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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1997 

$3,603,113 

$431,560 
2,421 
2,592 
2,383 

298.401 

737.357 

27,428 
21,186 

2.817.142 

2,865.756 

$3,603,113 



 

C ITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit A -2 
G ENERAL FUND 

CO M PARATIVE STATEM ENTS O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & 
CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 

FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 AND 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes - Property Tax - Genera 

Licenses and Perm its: 
Insurance License 
A lcoholic Beverage License 
Bicycle License Fees 
Inspection - Building 
Inspection - Plum bing 
Inspection - Electrical 
Inspection - M echanical 
Inspection - Occupancy 
Franchise - A rkla G as 
Franchise - Cable T.V . 
G rease trap perm it 

Total Licenses and Perm its 

ntergovernm ental: 
Solid W aste M gm t. Program 
Louisiana Tobacco Tax 
Louisiana Fire Insurance 
Louisiana Beer Tax 
RPD HUD G rant 
V ideo Poker Tax 
Louisiana M ainstreet G rant 
Forestry G rant 
Louisiana Deist o~ Hic3hways 
HUD Adm inistration Fee 

Total Intergovernm enta 

1998 1997 

$553,931 $532,533 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 

44 

225,398 
2.925 

43,772 
9,752 
14,360 
9,195 
2,180 
99,465 
117,150 

510 

524.707 

399,051 
97,841 
20,723 
32.697 

101,596 
10,000 
1,855 

35,646 
69.604 

227,119 
3,277 
142 

31,259 
8,744 
14,765 
9,753 
1,678 

98,800 
318.143 

713.680 

394,876 
73,381 
33,816 
26,617 
44,855 
94,884 
5,000 
1,401 

35,646 
84.518 

769.013 794.994 
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G ENERAL FUND 

CO M PARATIVE STATEM ENTS O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & 
CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 

FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 AND 1997 

C harges for Services: 
Refuse Collection Fees 

Total Charges for Services 

Fines & Forfeitures: 
Fines - W ard M arshal 
Fines - W itness Fees 
Fines - DW l Testing 
Fines/Fees - Anim al Control 
Fire Departm ent - CPR Classes 
Donation - Anim al Control 
Donation - Railroad Park 
Fines - Parking Tickets 
Accident Reports - Police 
Incident Reports - Fire 
Crem atory Fees 
Probation Revenue 
Police Departm ent M iscellaneous 

Total Fines and Forfeitures 

M iscellaneous: 
C ivic Center Incom e 
Interest 
Rentals - City Property 
Sale of C ulvert 
Sale of Equipm ent 
Com m ission South Central Bell 
Federal & State Disaster Relief 
Concession Receipts 
M iscellaneous 

Total M iscellaneous 

Total Revenues; 

1998 1997 

1.055,110 1,032,930 

1.055,110 1,032,930 

105,208 
34,907 
7,014 
3,123 
4.794 

1,250 
23,300 
5,959 
184 

1,846 
41,090 
31.916 

108,073 
8,925 
5,790 
2,671 
5,718 

20 

10,695 
4,849 
109 

26,253 
47,606 
21.358 

260,591 242,067 

36,893 
94,893 
1,050 
180 

2,000 
91 

1,312 
112,749 

34,520 
73,408 
2,511 
792 

4,016 
160 

72,883 
1,651 
15.029 

249,168 204,970 

3.412,520 3,521,174 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statements 
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CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit A-2 
G ENERAL FUND 

CO M PA RATIV E STATEM ENTS O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & 
CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 

FO R THE YEA RS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 A ND 1997 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
G eneral G overnm ent 
Public Safety 
Public W ork.'; 
Debt Service: 
Certificate of Indebtedness Principal Paym ent 
Certificate of Indebtedness Interest Paym ent 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
O perating Transfers In 
O perating Transfers O ut 
Capital Lease 

Total O ther Financing 
Sources 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Fi_oancing Sources Over 
Expenditures and O ther Uses 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

1998 

1,557,700 
3,826,950 
4.234.269 

41,000 
25.318 

1997 

1,298,817 
3,537,050 
3,641,955 

38,000 
25.725 

9.685.237 8.541.547 

(6,272,717) (5,020,373) 

5,838,199 

(42,500) 
442.070 

5,747,524 
(42,500) 

6.237.769 5.705.024 

(34,948) 684,651 

2.865.756 2.181.105 

$2.830,808 $2,865,756 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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C ITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
G ENERAL FUND 

Exhibit A -3 

STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAl_ 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Revenues: 
l-axes - Property Tax - Genera 

Licenses and Perm its 
Insurance License 
Alcoholic Beverage License 
Bicycle License Fees 
Inspection - Building 
Inspection - Plum bing 
Inspection - I-lectrical 
Inspection - M echanical 
Inspection - O ccupancy 
Franchise - Arkla G as 
Franchise - Cable T.V . 
G rease trap perm it 

Total Licenses and Perm its 

ntergovernm ental: 
Solid W aste M gmt. Program 
Louisiana Tobacco Tax 
Louisiana Fire Insurance 
Louisiana Beer Tax 
RPD HUD G rant 
Video Poker Tax 
Louisiana M ainstreet G rant 
Forestry G rant 
Louisiana Dept of Highways 
HUD Adm inistration Fee 

Total Intergovem m enta 

Budget Actua 

$530,000 

225,000 
3,600 

75 
40,000 
10,000 
17,000 
12,000 
1,500 

95,000 
50.000 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$553,931 $23,931 

225,398 
2,925 

43,772 
9,752 
14,360 
9,195 
2,180 
99,465 
117,150 

510 

398 

(675) 
(75) 

3,772 

(248) 
(2,640) 
(2,805) 
680 

4,465 
67,150 

510 

454.175 524.707 70.532 

400,000 
100,000 
33,000 
25,000 
30,000 
90.000 

35,000 
70,000 

783.000 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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399,051 
97,841 
20,723 
32.697 

101,596 
10,000 
1,855 

35,646 
69.604 

(949) 
(2,159) 
(12,277) 
7,697 

(30,000) 
11,596 
10,000 
1,855 
646 
(396) 

769,013 (13,987) 



C ITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIA NA 
G ENERAL FUND 

Exhibit A-3 

STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Charges for Services: 
Refuse Collection Fees 

Total Charges for Services 

Fines & Forfeitures 
Fines - W ard M arsha 
Fines - W itness Fees 
Fines - DW I Testing 
Fines/Fees -. Anim al Contro 
Fire Departm ent - CPR Classes 
Donation - Railroad Park 
Fines - Parking Tickets 
Accident Reports - Police 
Incident Reports - Fire 
Crem atory Fees 
Probation Revenue 
Police Departm ent M iscellaneous 

Total Fines and Forfeitures 

M iscellaneous 
Civic Center Incom e 
Interest 
Rentals - C ity Property 
Sale of C ulvert 
Sale of Equipm ent 
Com m ission South Central Be 
Concession Receipts 
M iscellaneous 

Total M iscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Budget Actua 

1,030,000 1.055.110 

1,030.000 1.055.110 

34,964 
8,500 
4,200 
2.300 

13,000 
5,000 

2,000 
57,122 
23.375 

105,208 
34,907 
7,014 
3,123 
4,794 
1,250 

23,300 
5,959 
184 

1,846 
41,090 
31.916 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

25,110 

25.110 

(29,756) 
26,407 
2,814 
823 

4,794 
1,250 
10,300 

959 
184 

(154) 
(16,032) 
8.541 

250.461 260.591 10,130 

40,000 
50,000 
1,250 
700 

150 
1,600 
10.000 

36,893 
94,893 
1,050 
180 

2,000 
91 

1,312 
112.749 

(3,107) 
44,893 

(2OO) 
(520) 
2,000 

(59) 
(288) 

102.749 

103.700 249.168 145,468 

3.151.336 3.412.520 261,184 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statements 
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C ITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
G ENERA L FUND 

Exhibit A-3 

STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES & 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Expenditures: 
C urrent: 
General G overnm ent 
Public Safety 
Public W orks 
Debt Service:: 
Certificate of Indebtedness Principal Paym ent 
Certificate of Indebtedness Interest Paym ent 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses] 
O perating Transfers In 
O perating Transfers O ut 
Capital Leases 

Total Other Financing 
Sources 

Budget Actua 

1,699,838 
3,983,877 
3.991.115 

1,557,700 
3,826,950 
4,234,269 

41,000 
25.318 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

142,138 
156,927 

(243,154) 

(41,000) 
(25,318) 

9,674,830 9,685,237 (10,407) 

(6,523,494) (6,272,717) 250,777 

5,765,212 

(66,370) 
5,838,199 

(42,500) 
442.070 

72,987 
23,870 
442.070 

5.698.842 6.237.769 538.927 

Deficiency of Revenues and 
Other Financing Sources Over 
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (824,652) (34,948) 789,704 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

2.865.756 2.865.756 

$2,041,104 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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$2,830,808 $789,704 



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

50 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Rewm ue Funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure 
for particular purposes. 

SALES TAX FUNDS 

RUSTO N PARKS & RECREATIO N BOARD 

This fund accounts for the receipts and subsequent expenditures of the City of Ruston 
Park and Recreation Program . 

TATE RE!VENUE SHARING FUN 

This fund accounts for the receipt and subsequent expenditures of revenue sharing 
funds received from the State of Louisiana. 

A.R.T. G RANT PRO G RAM 

This fund accounts for the receipt and subsequent expenditures of a State of Louisiana 
Em ergency Shelter G rant Program . 

ECENTRALIZED ARTS G RANT 

This fund accounts for the receipt and subsequent expenditures of a State of Louisiana 
Decentralized Arts G rant Program . 

HEALTH AND SAFETY REHAB 

N 8 HO USING ASSISTANCE P S 

Section 8 Housing Funds account for receipt of Federal Funds and the payment of 
Housing Assistance Payments to qualifying rental property owners

. 
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Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Sales Tax 
M iscellaneous: 
Interest Incom e 

Total Revenues, 

C ITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIA NA Exhibit B-3 
1968 SALES TAX FUND 

STATEM ENT O F REV ENUES, EXPENDITURES, & C HA NG ES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 
FO R THE YEA R ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Expenditures: 
G eneral G overnm ent: 
Collection & Adm in. 
Expenses 

Total Expenditures 

F!xcess of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 

Other Financing (Uses): 
O perating Transfers O ut 

Total O ther Financing Uses 

Budget 

Variance 
Favorable 

Actual (Unfavorable) 

$1,463,778 $1,490,442 

20.000 45.470 

1.483.778 1.535.912 

37.078 16.807 

37.078 16.807 

1.446.700 1,519.105 

(1,445,700) 

(1,445,700) 

(1,445,700) 

(1,445,700) 

Excess of Revenues 
Over Expenditures and Other 
Financing Uses 1,000 73,405 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 530,542 530,542 

Fund Balance, September 30 $531,542 $603,947 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statements 

54 

$26,664 

25,470 

52.134 

20.271 

20.271 

72.405 

0 

0 

72.405 

$72,405 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N , LO UISIA NA Exhibit B-4 
1985 SALES TAX FUND 

STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANG ES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FO R THE Y EAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Sales Tax 
M iscellaneous: 
Interest Incom e 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
General G overnm ent 
Collection & Adm in. 
Expenses 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 

Other Financing (Uses): 
O perating Transfers O ut 

Total O ther Financing Uses 

Excess oTRevenues Over 
Expenditures and Other 
Financing Uses 

Fund Balance. October 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

Budget Actua 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$2,225,000 $2,235,663 $10,663 

9.700 15.623 

2.234.700 2.251.286 

26.950 23.533 

26.950 23.533 

5.923 

16,586 

3.417 

3.417 

2.207.750 2.227.753 20.003 

(2,207,750) 

(2,207,750) 

333.719 

$333,719 

(2,212,647) 

(2,212,647) 

(4,897) 

(4,897) 

15.106 15.106 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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$15,106 



 

C ITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit B-5 
1990 SA LES TAX FUND 

STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANG ES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FO R THE YEA R ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Sales Tax 
M iscellaneous: 
Interest Incom e 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
G eneral G overnm ent 
Collection & Adm in. 
Expenses 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Budget 

Variance 
Favorable 

Actual (Unfavorable) 

$1,463,778 $1,490,442 

4.000 7.995 

$26,664 

3.995 

1.467.778 1.498,437 30,659 

24.078 15,330 8,748 

24.078 15.330 8,748 

1.443.700 1,483,107 39,407 

Other Financing (Uses): 
Operating Transfers Out (1,413,000) (1,414,000) 

-fotal Other Financing Uses (1,413,000) (1,414,000) 

Excess of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 
and O ther Financing Uses 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

(1 ,ooo) 

(1 ,ooo) 

30.700 69,107 38,407 

301.841 301,841 

Fund Balance, September 30 $332,541 $370,948 $38,407 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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CiTY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit B-6 
RUSTO N PARKS & RECREATIO N BOARD 

STATEM EN3- O F REV ENUES, EXPENDITURES A ND C HA NG ES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FO R THE Y EAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Budget Actua 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Properly Tax-Recreation $236,250 $242,523 

Total Taxes 

M iscellaneous: 
Program Charges 
Concessions 
Interest 
Rentals 
Other 

Total M iscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Salaries 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 

Emp]~yee Benefits - Insurance 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Office Supplies/Printing 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Bldgs & G rnds 
Repairs & M aintenance - Parks 
M aintenance of Equipm ent 
Utilities 
Heating 
Telephone 

236.250 242.523 

74,600 
12,000 
2,000 
11,750 

500 

97,439 
15,484 
1,762 
8,683 
2.000 

100.850 125,368 

337.100 367,891 

245,314 
11,793 
6,372 

40,336 
3,100 
1,811 
6,120 
16,238 
5,500 
3,500 
3,000 
18,000 
5,100 
6,100 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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228,110 
10,638 
5,2O8 
34,037 
3,100 
627 

5,873 
15,872 
3,954 
2,760 
2,589 
24,609 
4,149 
6.453 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$6,273 

6.273 

22,839 
3,484 

(238) 
(3,087) 
1,500 

24.518 

30,791 

17,204 
1,155 
1,164 
6,299 

1,184 
247 
366 

1,546 
740 
411 

(6,609) 
951 

(353) 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit B-6 
RUSTO N PARKS & RECREATIO N BOARD 

STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES A ND C HANG ES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Expenditures (Continued): 
Auto A llow ances 
Auto & Truck Repair 
G asoline, O il & Diesel 
Travel 
A udit Fees 
Legal Services 
Consulting 
Concession Supplies 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
Recreation Program Expense 
M edical Supplies & Services 
M iscellaneous 
Postage 
Capital Assets 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
O perating Transfers In 
O pera

_
ting Transfers O ut 

Budget Actua 

13,903 
1,500 
2,500 
728 

3,566 
1,045 
4,916 
10,169 

700 
15,864 
78,137 

70O 
200 

1,300 
6.800 

12,588 
1,496 
1,927 
653 

3,566 
974 

4,579 
9,819 
717 

14,998 
76,553 

736 
189 

1,004 
6.727 

514.312 484.505 

(177,212) (116,614) 

221,440 

(53,660) 
221,996 

(80,572) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 167,780 141,424 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenues and 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Over Expenditures (9,432) 24,810 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

45.199 45.199 

$35,767 $70,009 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

1,315 
4 

573 
75 

71 
337 
35O 

(17) 
866 

1,584 

(36) 
11 

296 
73 

29.807 

60.598 

556 

(28,912) 

(26,356) 

34.242 

$34,242 



Revenues: 
M iscellaneous, 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 
STATE REVENUE SHARING 

STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANG ES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

Budget Actual 

$ 

8,831 

$8,831 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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Exhibit B-7 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$259 $259 

259 

8,831 

$9,090 

259 

$259 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit B-8 
SPEC IA L REV ENUE FUND 

SECTIO N 8 EXISTING HO USING 
STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANG ES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Revenues: 
Intergovernm erlta 
M iscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
G eneral G overnm ent 

Total Expenditures 

[Excess of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

Budget Actua 

$500,000 
1.000 

501.000 

$681,423 
1.702 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$181,423 
702 

683.125 182.125 

465,980 585,594 (119,614) 

465,980 585,594 (119,614) 

35.020 97.531 62.511 

118.928 118.928 

$153,948 $216,459 $62,511 
~ = ~ = = = ~  ~ = = = = = = = = = =  = = = = =:= = = = = = = = =  

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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CITY O F RUSTO N, LOUISIANA Exhibit B-9 
SPEC IA L REV ENUE FUND 

SECTIO N 8 M O DREHAB HO USING 
STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANG ES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 
FO R THE YEA R ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Revenues: 
Intergovernm enta 
M iscellaneous 

Total Revenue,~ 

Expenditures: 
G eneral G overnm ent 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

Budget Actua 

$80,000 
250 

$51,700 
168 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

($28,300) 
(82) 

80,250 51,868 (28,382) 

77.500 46.208 31.292 

77.500 46.208 31.292 

2,750 

10.345 

5,660 

10.345 

2.910 

$13,095 $16,005 $2,910 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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Revenues: 
Intergovernm enta 
Interest Incom e 

Total Revenues 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit B-10 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SECTIO N 8 VO UCHER PROG RAM 
STATEM ENT O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, & CHANG ES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 
FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Expenditures: 
G eneral G overnm ent 

Total Expenditures 

Excess of Revenues 
O ver Expenditures 

Fund Balance. O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

Budget Actua 

$85,000 
500 

$132,469 
1.689 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$47,469 
1.189 

85.500 134.158 48.658 

83,980 83,585 

83.980 83.585 

1,520 

67.173 

395 

395 

50,573 49,053 

67.173 

$68,693 $117,746 $49,053 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accum ulation of resources and paym ent of genera 
obligation bond principal and interest from governm ental resources

. 



ASSETS 

Cash and Cash E-quivalents 

Total Assets 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit C-1 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 

CO M PA RATIVE BALA NC E SHEETS 
SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 A ND 1997 

LIABILITIES A ND FUND BALANCE 

Fund Balance: 
Reserved for Debt Service 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

1998 1997 

$93,913 $87,727 

$93,913 $87,727 

$93.913 $87,727 

93.913 

$93,913 
~ = = = = = = = =  

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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87.727 

$87,727 



P, evenues 
Interest 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LOUISIANA Exhibit C-2 
DEBT SERV ICE FUND 

CO M PA RATIV E STATEM ENTS O F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
& CHANG ES IN FUND BALANCES 
SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 AND 1997 

[Expenditures: 
Debt Service: 
Bond Principal Paym ent 
Bond Interest Expense 

Total Expenditures 

Fxcess of Expenditures over Revenues 

Other Financing Sources 
O perating Transfers In 

Fxcess of Rew~nues and Other 
Financing Sources O ver Expenditures 

Fund Balance, O ctober 1 

Fund Balance, Septem ber 30 

1998 1997 

$1,457 $1,369 

150,000 
51.519 

145,000 
57.296 

201.519 202.296 

(200,062) (200,927) 

206.248 202.297 

6.186 1.370 

87.727 86.357 

$93,913 $87,727 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds account for the financial resources to be used for the acquisition of construction 
of major capital facilities(other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). 

FIRE STATIO N CO NSTRUCTIO N 

To account for receipts and disbursements of the proceeds from the issuance of Certificates of 
Indebtedness Series 1993, designated for the construction of a new fire station. 

CENTRAL SHO P CO NSTRUCTIO N 

To account for receipts and disbursem ents of the proceeds from the issuance of Certificates of 
Indebtedness Series 1993, designated for the construction of a central repair shop. 

PUBLIC W O RKS SHO P CO NSTRUCTIO N 

To account for receipt and disbursem ent of the proceeds from the issuance of Certificates of 
Indebtedness Series 1994A, designated for the Construction of a Public W orks Shop. 

HAZARD M ITIGATIO N G RANT 

To account for receipts and disbursements of a grant received from the State of Louisiana for 
rem oving repetitive loss structures from the flood plain. 

PARKS-& RECREATIO N - 1996 CERTIFICATES O F INDEBTEDNESS 

To account for receipts and disbursem ents of the proceeds from the issuance of Certificates of 
Indebtedness, Series 1996, designated for Park and Recreation capital purchases and 
im provem ents. 

SEW ER DEM O NSTRATED NEEDS G RANT 

To account for receipts and disbursements of a grant received from the Louisiana Com m unity 
Develc, prnent Block Grant for sewer force m ain replacem ent. 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a m anner sim ilar to private 
business enterprises - where the intent of the governm ent's council is that the costs of providing goods 
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered prim arily through user 
charges; or where the government's council has decided that periodic determ ination of net incom e is 
appropriate for accountability purposes. 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM FUND 

This fund accounts for the operations of the Electric System 

W ATER SYSTEM FUND 

This fund accounts for the operations of the W aterw orks System 

SEW ERAG E SYSTEM FUND 

This fund accounts for the operations of the Sewerage System 

RUSTON AIRPO RT AUTHORITY 

This fund accounts for the operations of the Ruston M unicipal Airport 

AM BULANCE! FUND 

This fund accounts for the operations of the Ruston-Lincoln Am bulance Service 
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NTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
departm ent or agency to other departm ents or agencies of the governm ent and to other 
governm ent units, on a cost reim bursem ent basis. 

W ORKM EN'S CO M PENSATIO N SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

W orkmen's Com pensation Fund accum ulates resources to finance em ployee workm en's 
compensation injuries and claims. 

G ENERAL SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

General Self-Insurance Fund accumulates resources to finance claims and judgments 
arising from em ployee health insurance and other exposures. 

PURCHASlNG-W AREHOUSE FUND 

Purchasing-W arehouse Fund coordinates purchasing and warehousing operations for a 
appli('able funds. 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Exhibit F-1 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
COM BINING BALANCE SHEET 

SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 
W ITH COM PARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEMBER 30, 1997 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investm ents 
Accounts Receiwable 
Due From Other Funds 

Total Assets 

W orkmen's General Purchasing / 
Com pensation Insurance W arehouse 

$519,051 

97.736 

$616,787 
= = = = = ~ ~ = = = =  

LIABILITIES & RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Bank O verdraft 
Estim ated Payable for 
O utstanding Claim s 
Com pensated Absences 
Due to Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 

$158,356 

77,233 

$235,589 
= ~ = = = = = = = 

$21,926 $ 

238,528 

3.409 

98,344 

426,865 

$24,369 

78 

$24,447 
= = = = ~ = = = = = 

29,520 
6.281 

1998 

Totals 

$701,776 

77,311 
97.736 

$876,823 
= = = ~ = = = = = = 

$21,926 

336,872 
29,520 
436.555 

1997 

$131,095 
493,649 
86,800 
100,324 

$811,868 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

$7,989 
102,137 

261,614 
14,451 

401.317 

263.863 525,209 35,801 824,873 787,508 

Retained Earnings (Deficit): 
Unreserved 352,924 (289,620) (11,354) 51,950 24,360 

Total Liabilities & Retained Earnings $616,787 $235,589 $24,447 

See accom panying notes to combined financial statements 
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$876,823 $811,868 
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Operating Revenues: 
Insurance Subrogations 
Premium s Paid by 
Retired Em ployees 
Charges to Other Funds 
Charges for Servk-es 

Total O perating Revenues 

O perating Expenses: 
Claim s 
Insurance Prem ium s 
Cost of Services 

Total O perating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Interest Insom e 

Net Income (Loss) 

CITY O F RUSTON, LOUISIANA Exhibit F-2 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COM BINING STATEM ENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS) 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 
W ITH COM PARATIVE TOTALS FOR SEPTEM BER 39, 1997 

W orkm en's 
Com pensation 

36.933 

General 
Self-Insurance 

Purchasing / 
W arehouse 

$49,144 $ 

216,223 
1.595,537 

139,340 

1998 

Totals 

1997 

$49,144 $184,756 

216,223 
1,632,470 
139,340 

176.754 
1,008,537 
143.000 

36.933 1.860.904 139.340 2.037.177 1.513,047 

164,540 
98,268 

1.402,917 
211.425 

161.221 

1,567,457 
309,693 
161.221 

1.625,386 
275,682 
132,222 

262.808 1.614.342 161,221 2,038,371 2,033,290 

(225,875) 246,562 (21,881) (1.194) (520,243) 

23.724 3.983 1,077 28,784 39,512 

(202,151) 250,545 (20,804) 27,590 (480.731) 

Retained Earnings (Deficit). 
October 1 555,075 (540,165) 9,450 24,360 505,091 

Retained Earnings (Deficit), 
September 30 $352,924 ($289,620) ($11,354) 

= = = ~ = = = = = = = = = = = = = = ~ = = = 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents. 
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CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit F-3 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

CO M BINING STATEM ENT O F CASH FLOW S 
SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

W ITH CO M PARATIVE TOTALS FO R SEPTEM BER 30, 1997 

Cash Flows From O perating Activities 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating 
Loss to Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Operating Activities: 

(Increase) Decrease in 
O perating Assets: 

Accounts Receivable 
Due From Other Funds 

Increase (Decrease) in Operating 
Liabilities: 

Bank Overdraft 
Accounts Payable 
Estim ated Payable for 
O utstanding Claim s 
Due to O ther Funds 
Com pensated Absences 

W orkm en's General Purchasing / 
Com pensation Insurance W arehouse 1998 

Totals 

1997 

($225,875) $246,562 ($21,881) ($1,194) ($520,243) 

(93,502) 5,333 (78) 
100.324 

13,937 

99,056 
3,409 

(102,137) 

(23,798) 
28.413 3,416 

15,069 

(88,247) 
100.324 

(102,137) 
13.937 

75,258 
35,238 
15.069 

(23,956) 
(86,293) 

102,137 

(22,166) 

102,540 
223,507 

(76) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating 
Activities (102,651) 154,373 (3,474) 48,248 (224,550) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Interest 
Purchases of Investm ents 
Proceeds from Sales and M aturities 
of Investm ents 

23,724 3,983 1,077 

493,649 

28,784 39,512 

(2,270,879) 

493.649 2,419,106 

Net Cash Flow s From Investing 
Activities 517,373 3,983 1,077 522,433 187,739 

Net Increase (Dec-rease) in Cash 
and Cash Equivalents 414,722 158,356 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, October 1 104,329 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 30 $519,051 $158,356 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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(2,397) 

26,766 

$24,369 

570~681 (36,811) 

131.095 167,906 

$701,776 $131,095 



AG ENCY FUND 

Agency Fund accounts for assets held by governm ent as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governm ents and/or other funds. 

DEFERRED CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

The Deferred Com pensation Fund accounts for the em ployees' tax Section 457 deferred 
com pensation plan consisting of optional investment funds, 
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A SSETS 

Investm ents 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit G-1 
AG ENCY FUND 

DEFERRED CO M PENSATIO N FUND 
CO M PARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 A ND 1997 

1998 1997 

$2,042,336 

$2,042,336 

$1,953,137 

$1,953,137 

$2,042,336 $1,953,137 

$2,042,336 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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$1,953,137 



ASSETS 

nvestm ents 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit G -2 
AG ENCY FUND 

DEFERRED CO M PENSATIO N FUND 
STATEM ENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS & LIABILITIES 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

Balance 
O ctober 1 

1997 

Balance 
Septem ber 30 

Additions Deductions 1998 

$1,953,137 $347,578 ($258,379) $2,042,336 

$1,953,137 $347,578 ($258,379) $2,042,336 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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G ENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCO UNT G RO UP 

The General Fixed Asset Account Group accounts for fixed assets of the governmental jurisdiction 
which are not accounted for in an Enterprise, Internal Service, or Trust and Agency Fund. 
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GENERAL LO NG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT G ROUP 

The General Long-Term Debt Account Group records the general obligation bonds and other form s of 
long-term debt supported by general revenues that are obligations of a governm ental unit as a whole 
and not its indM dual constituent funds. 



 

C ITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Exhibit I-1 
SCHEDULE O F CHANG ES IN G ENERAL LO NG-TERM DEBT 

FO R THE YEA R ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

O ctober 1 
1997 

Septem ber 30 
Additions Deductions 1998 

Amount Available, in Debt Service Fund $87,727 $6,186 $ $93,913 

Am ount to be Provided for Retirem ent of 
G eneral Long-Term Debt 3,009,934 537,720 371,432 3,176,222 

Totals 

Long-Term O bligations Payable 

Com pensated Absences 

$3,097,661 $371,432 

$629,635 $95,650 $ 

Certificates of Indebtedness 1,547,000 

M unicipal Police Em ployees' 
Retirem ent System 435,597 

Capital Leases 

Totals 

485.429 442.070 

$3,097,661 $537,720 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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$3,270,135 

$725,285 

191.000 1.356.000 

64,111 371,486 

110.135 817.364 

$365,246 $3,270,135 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
G ENERA L FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 1998 

General Govern m ent: 
Executive: 

Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Salaries - Contract Labor 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Unem ploym ent Com pensation 
Training ot: Personnel 
Printing of Form s 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Office Equipm ent 
Rent of Office Equipm ent 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto Allowances 
Audit Fees 
Legal Adverlising 
G IS Expense 
Coroner Fees 
Consulting 
Data Processing 
Tax Assessor~Collection Fees 

Cash Short (Over) 
Lincoln Parish Health Unit 
Lincoln Parish Vets Adm in 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Election Expense 
Insurance; 
M edical Supplies & SerVices 
Drug Ed/Prevention 
Co~e,c,i~ EY, ge~ses 
M iscellaneous 
Postage 
W arehouse 
Capital Outlay 

Totals 

Budget Actua 

$349,812 
6,000 
2,400 
20,122 
4,666 
60,925 

250 
1,600 
1,000 
8,000 
3,000 
15,000 
2,000 
15,000 
99,000 
29,500 
11,700 
17,200 
4,800 
20,000 
15,000 

500 
3,500 
25,041 

100 
5,000 
2,316 
28,000 
7,500 
10,200 
1,500 
15,000 
3,000 
6,300 
10.000 

204.275 

$345,830 
4,367 
1,078 
19,276 
4,974 
5t,774 

233 
1.600 

4,171 
3,348 
15,280 

791 
10,121 
94,319 
26,716 
11,516 
15,292 
4,001 
18,818 
5,530 

0 
1,983 

22,043 

5,000 
2,316 
24,352 

10,731 
1,326 
14,519 

830 
5,181 
6,418 
8,000 

259,170 

1,009,207 1,000,904 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$3,982 
1,633 
1,322 
846 
(308) 
9,151 

17 

1,000 
3,829 
(348) 
(280) 
1,209 
4,879 
4,681 
2,784 
184 

1,908 
799 

1,182 
9,470 
500 

1,517 
2,998 
100 

3,648 
7,500 

(531) 
174 
481 

2,170 
1,119 
3,582 
(8,000) 
(54,895) 

8,303 



 

CITY O F RUSTON, LO UISIANA Schedule 1 
GENERA L FUND 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

General Government (Continued): 
City Court: 

Salaries - Regular 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Judge's Reti[em ent 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
W erkmen',,~ Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
W itness Fee - Officers 
Telephone 
Juvenile Assistance Program 
M edical Supplies & Services 

W ard Marshal: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 

Totals 

Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Postage 

Totals 

City Hall Buildings & G rounds 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Salaries - Contract Labor 
Em ployee, Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkmen's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Unem ploym ent Com pensation 
Item s for Resale 
Supplies & Chemicals 
Maintenance of BIdg & G rounds 
M aintenance of Equipm ent 
Telephone 
Auto Allowances 
Gasoline. Oil & Diesel 
nsurance 

Budget Actual 

100,277 
4,491 
2,952 
1,133 

15,752 
500 

~ 1,200 
15,000 
2, O00 
10,500 

2OO 

97,624 
4,368 
2,779 
1,O44 

15,458 
500 

9,825 
2,397 
0,500 
144 

154,005 144.639 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

86,774 
2,975 
4,990 
721 

23,958 
1,050 
112 
194 

82,711 

5,724 
760 

19,329 
1.050 

215 

120.774 109.789 

91,335 
5,160 
1,500 
4,620 
2,531 
13,350 

500 
600 

2,000 
1,200 
11,040 
132,700 
4,650 
1,400 
1,200 
4O0 

19.920 

92,535 
3.859 

3,979 
2,397 
10,022 

495 
600 
86 

163 
10,577 
41,792 
3,266 
1,331 
969 
121 

18.747 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

2,653 
123 
173 
89 
294 

1,200 
5,175 

(397) 

56 

9.366 

4,063 
2,975 

(734) 
(39) 

4.629 

112 
(21) 

10.985 

(1,200) 
1,301 
1,500 
641 
134 

3,328 
5 

(86) 
2,000 
1,037 
463 

90,908 
1,384 

69 
231 
279 

1.173 



 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

City Hall Buildings & Grounds (continued) 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Postage 
Capital O ullay 

Totals 

Tourism And Prem otions: 
M ainstreet Facade Expense 

Totals 

Section 6 Housing: 
Salaries - Regular 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
W orkmen's Compensation 
Office Supplies/Printing 
M aint. of Office Equipm ent 
Rent of Office Equipm ent 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto Allowances 
Travel 
Legal Serv ices 
Dues & Subscriptions 
P.ostage 

Totals 

Budget Actual 

150 
100 

32.000 

223 
29 

30,959 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(73) 
71 

1.041 

326,356 222,150 104,206 

51,330 
2,952 
599 

9,615 
20O 

3,900 
4,800 
3,600 
2,500 
1,500 
1,900 
4,000 
100 

1,000 
1.500 

I0,000 (I0,000) 

10,000 (10,000) 

40,875 
2,347 
558 

9,559 
200 

1,763 
450 

1,023 
5,617 
900 

5.644 

164 
1,118 

89.496 70,218 

10,455 
605 
41 
56 

2,137 
4,356 
3,600 
1,477 

(4,117) 
1 ,O00 

(1,644) 
100 
836 
382 

19.278 

TOTAL G'ENERAL GOVERNMENT $1,699,838 $1,557,700 $142,138 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 



Public Safety: 
Police Departm ent: 

Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 

CITY OF RU~TO N, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
G ENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. "~998 

Salaries - DW I Enforcement 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Police Retirem ent 
Form er Retirem ent 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Training Supplies 
W idow's Com pensation 
Narcotics Enforcem ent Team 
Emergency Response Team 
Office Supplies/Printing 
Supplies 
Maintenance of Building & G rounds 
Rent of Office Equipment 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto Allow ances 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline, O il & Diesel 
Legal Services 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
Iz~surance - Auto Liability 
Investigative Awards 
Lincoln Parish Detention Center 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Postage 
LLBG G rant Expenditures 
Capital O utlay 

Totals 

Budget Actual 

1,298,754 
144,261 
14,000 
8,613 

118,373 
90,676 
15,425 
198,797 
16,300 
4,852 
20,000 
5,000 
2,470 
18,600 
5,000 
3,026 
21,0O0 
11,100 
4,800 

23,000 
4,500 
37,000 
33,164 
10,550 
3,000 
31,396 
8,285 
560 

15,000 
3,050 
1 ,O00 

43,629 
166.858 

1,281,896 
146,907 
15,743 
7,640 

110,857 
90,676 
15,952 

202,140 
14,473 
4,852 
21,496 
4,707 
2,280 
17,016 
4,951 
3,021 
20,749 
8,338 
4,717 
2,169 
22,971 
4,500 
36,917 
32,615 
7,355 
2,957 
60,246 
8.115 

15,000 
2,927 
1,529 

43,579 
165.836 

2.381.979 2.385.129 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

16,856 
(2,646) 
(1,743) 
973 

7,516 

(527) 
(3,343) 
1,827 

(1,496) 
293 
190 

1,584 
49 
5 

251 
2,762 

83 
(2,169) 

29 

83 
549 

3,195 
43 

(28,850) 
170 
500 

123 
(529) 
5O 

,022 

(3,150) 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 1998 

Fire Departm ent: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - ,Overtim e 
Employee Pension - Firefighters 
Employee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkmen's Compensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Building & Grounds 
Rent of Office Equipm ent 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto Allowances 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline, O il & Diesel 
Legal Services 
Dues & Subscriptions 
InsurancE! 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Postage 
Capital Outlay 

Totals 

Probation Office: 
Salaries .- Regular 
Salaries ,. Overtim e 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ptoyee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Employee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
Maintenance of Equipm ent 
Telephone 
Auto and Truck Repair 
Gas. O il and Diesel 
Insurance 

Medical Supplies & Services 
M iscellaneous 
Postage 

Totals 

Budget Actua 

833,623 
19,476 
85,000 
6,060 

161,805 
6,090 
3,300 
10,000 
14,000 
29,750 
4,900 
24,000 
15,000 
15,000 
8,000 
5,000 
8,887 
2,700 
27,684 

8OO 
100 

140.630 

804,525 
15,260 
71,214 
4,700 

158,321 
5,981 
3,300 
6,126 
14,908 
18,023 
3,260 
24,894 
16,482 
15,075 
8,370 
4,147 
7,627 
2,357 
26,507 

694 

72.295 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

29,098 
4,216 
13,786 
1,300 
3,484 

19 

3,874 
(908) 

11,727 
1,64o 

(894) 
(1,482) 
(75) 
(370) 
853 

1,260 
343 

1,177 
106 
100 

68,335 

1.421.655 1,284,066 137,589 

32,991 
2,000 
1,897 
479 

2,664 
500 
2OO 

1,000 
2,200 
45O 

1,800 
309 

1,500 
862 
2OO 
100 
100 

32,670 
2,069 
1,355 
1,332 
2,214 
413 
200 
877 

1,820 
331 

2,078 
291 
825 
736 

49.243 47.211 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

321 

(69) 
542 

(853) 
45o 
87 

123 
38O 
119 

(278) 
9 

675 
126 
2O0 
100 
100 

2.032 



 

CITY OF RUBTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAp BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 

Street Lighting: 
M aintenance Street/Traffic Lights 
Utilities 

Totals 

Budget Actua 

4,000 
127.000 

167 
110,377 

131.000 110,544 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

3,833 
16,623 

20.456 

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY $3,983,877 $3,826,950 $156,927 

Public W orks Departm ent 
Adm inistrative: 

Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Em ployee, Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Office Supplies/Printing 
M aintenance of Building & G rounds 
Rent of Office Equipment 
Maintenance of Office Equipm ent 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto Allowances 
Legal Se'rvices 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Medical Supplies and Services 
Insurance - Fire 
Postage 
Capital Oullay 

Totals 

Streets: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Salaries - Contract Labor 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ptoyee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniforms 
W erkm en's Com pensation 
Unemploym ent 
Training of Personnel 
Chem icals 
Signs 

159,446 
800 

7,901 
2,802 
14,156 

252 
50O 

1,700 
12,270 
3,895 
3,000 
405 

34,468 
10,700 
8,100 
340 
410 
20O 

13,260 
100 

9.500 

154,286 
797 

7,355 
2,127 
10,119 

120 
500 

1,023 
11,786 
1,739 
2,607 
328 

31,477 
9,419 
8,083 
190 
409 
87 

13,200 
23 

9.457 

284,205 265,132 

See accom panying independent auditors' report 

514,042 
24,000 
8,400 
25,969 
9,341 

103,472 
13,395 
3,600 
1,000 
2,200 
5,600 
20.000 

496,938 
24,838 
5,496 
26,168 
7,899 
95,975 
11,828 
3,600 
116 

2,158 
5,541 
19.958 

5,160 
3 

546 
675 

4,037 
132 

677 
464 

2,156 
393 
77 

2,991 
1,281 

17 
150 
1 

113 
60 
77 
43 

19,073 

17,104 

(838) 
2,904 
(199) 
1,442 
7,497 
1.567 

884 
42 
59 
42 



 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FO R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Streets (Continued): 
Supplies/Street Paint 
M aintenance of Building & Grounds 
M aintenance of Streets 
Housing Demolition 
Rent of Equipm ent 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline. O il & Diese 
Insurance 

Medical Supplies and Services 
Capital O utlay 
Capital O utlay - Culvert 

Solid W aste: 
Salaries - Regular 
Sa{aries - Overtim e 

Totals 

Employee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Unem ployrlnent Com pensation 
Supplies / Training 
Maintenance of Building & G rounds 
Rent of Equipm ent 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Bad Debt Fxpenditure 
Gasoline, Oil & Diesel 
Insurance - Gen Liability 
Insurance - Auto Liability 
M edical Supplies and Services 
Capital O utlay 

Engineering: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 

Totals 

Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Equipm ent 

Budget Actual 

32,698 
67,400 
560,086 
33,000 
79,203 
24,000 
25,000 
43,321 
2,225 
54,028 
1,636 

29,971 
60,536 
562,945 
32,816 
75,565 
23,676 
24,850 
40,774 
1,938 

414,933 
1.036 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

2,727 
6,864 

(2,859) 
184 

3,638 
424 
150 

2,547 
287 

(360,905) 

1,653,016 1,969,455 (316,439) 

505,295 
28,000 
28,683 
4,868 

103,736 
14,318 
3,000 
1,000 

35,700 
110,324 
114,759 
55,298 

0 
44,000 
14,821 
21,975 
2,655 
12,400 

484,189 
28,448 
27,417 
4,372 
82,508 
11,838 
3.000 

36,274 
101,967 
114,758 
52,693 
16,000 
38,182 
13,747 
21,395 
2,349 
~2,506 

21,106 

(448) 
1,266 
496 

21,228 
2.480 

1,000 

(574) 
8,357 

1 
2,605 

(16,000) 
5,818 
1,074 
580 
306 

(80,106) 

1,100,832 1,131,643 (30,811) 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

97 

104,791 
2,235 
6,542 
1,546 
6,482 
300 

2,400 
7,000 
2,010 

105,056 
2,066 
6,048 
1,133 
5,775 
3O6 

2,015 
5,648 
1.538 

(265) 
169 
502 
413 
7O7 

385 
1,352 
472 



Engineering (continued): 
Telephone 
Auto Allowances 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline, O il & Diesel 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Postage 
Capital O utlay 

Totals 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Repair Shop: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FJCA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Unem ploym ent Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Building & G rounds 
Auto Allowances 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline. O il & Diesel 
Insurance 

Medical Supply and Services 
Capital O utlay 

Totals 

Anim al Control: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
Maintenance of Building & G rounds 
Utilities 

Budget Actual 

2,500 
2,400 
390 

1,150 
1,200 
4,463 
250 
250 

20.070 

2,283 
2,400 
221 
655 
636 

4,175 
2 

203 
20.060 

165,979 160.206 

274,030 
18,000 
14,740 
4,018 
45,085 
6,373 
1,400 
4,000 
5,000 
24,813 
1,120 
2,400 
2,103 
2,500 
3,031 
980 

1.000 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 
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249,672 
13,368 
14,314 
3,695 
39,914 
5,530 
1,400 
3,819 
4,158 
24,730 
1,117 
2,400 
2,007 
2,090 
2,951 
1,009 
746 

410,593 372.920 

78,167 
2,000 
3,474 
2,188 
9,724 
1,259 
5OO 

3,000 
9,925 
5,645 
2.450 

70,975 
2,189 
3,453 
1,704 
9,720 
1,183 
50O 

2,459 
10,043 
5,116 
2.252 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

217 

169 
495 
564 
288 
248 
47 
10 

5,773 

24,358 
4,632 
426 
323 

5,171 
843 

181 
842 
83 
3 

96 
410 
80 

(29) 
254 

37,673 

7,192 
(189) 
21 
484 
4 
76 

550 
118) 
529 
198 



Animal Control (continued): 
Heating 
Telephone 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline, O il & Diesel 
Legal Fees 
Insurance 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Capital O utlay 

Totals 

Com m unity Developm ent: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Contract Labor 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 

Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Office Supplies/Printing 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Auto Allowance 
Legal 
Consulting 
Dues & Subscriptions 
M iscellaneous 
Postage 
M~instreet Program 

Totals 

nspections: 
Salaries - Regular 
Salaries - Overtim e 
Em ployee Benefits - Pension 
Em ployee Benefits - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefits - Insurance 
W orkm en% Com pensation 
Unem ploym ent Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Office Supplies~Printing 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Building & Grounds 
Telephone 

Budget Actua 

4,900 
1,700 
2,435 
1,300 

30 
760 

1,650 
1.700 

4,132 
1,424 
2,372 
1,273 

30 
738 

1,641 
1.672 

132.807 122.867 

32,191 
2,000 
2,154 
544 

6,436 
100 

2,700 
2,300 
700 

1,550 
1,800 
2,800 
5,000 
1,300 
2,500 
500 

10.000 

30,312 
2,191 
1,389 
429 

1,366 
100 

1,013 
684 

1,637 
923 

2,220 
450 

1,177 
5,857 
481 

74.575 50.229 

See accom panying independent auditors' report. 

lO4,992 
2OO 

6,438 
1,859 
19,837 

4OO 
1,000 
lO,155 
2,339 
4,602 
200 

2,192 

109,220 

5,835 
2,o31 
15,27o 

4O0 
536 

6,587 
1,719 
4.504 

2,251 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

768 
276 
63 
27 

22 
9 

28 

9.940 

1,879 

(191) 
765 
115 

5.070 

2,700 
1,287 

16 

(87) 
877 
580 

4,550 
123 

(3,357) 
19 

10.000 

24.346 

(4,228) 
200 
603 
(172) 
4.567 

464 
3,568 
620 
98 
20O 
(59) 



 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 1 
G ENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE O F EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) & ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 

nspections (continued): 
Auto Allowance 
Legal 
Medical Supplies and Services 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Postage 
Capital O utlay 

Totals 

TOTAL PUBLIC W O RKS 

TOTAL G ENERAL FUND 
EXPENDITURES 

Budget Actua 

8,600 
1,120 
128 
846 
200 

4.000 

8,287 
120 
128 
655 
346 

3,928 

169,108 161,817 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

313 
1,000 

0 
191 

(146) 
72 

7.291 

$3,991,115 $4,234,269 ($243,154) 

$9,674,830 $9,618,919 $55,911 

See accom panying independent auditors' report 
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CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 2 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE O F OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 & 1997 

Direct Expenses: 
Steam Plant: 

Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Fuel & Energy 
Supplies 
Perm its 
M aintenance of Bldg., Gds., & Equip 
Disposal of Hazardous W aste 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto Allowances 
Auto & truck Repair 
G asoline, O il & Diesel 
Travel 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Depreciation 

Totals 

Diesel Plant: 
. - Salaries 

Fuel & Energy 
Supplies 
M aint of Bldg., Gds., & Equip 
Utilities 

Totals 

See accom panying auditors' report. 
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1998 

450,498 
23,762 
3,196 
65,525 
1,189 
1,800 
1,905 

7,458,792 
127,776 
18,342 
527,194 
9,722 

136,890 
8,761 
5,359 
918 
7O6 

120,116 
281 

397.073 

9.359.790 

1,261 
216 

4,590 
504 

6.571 

1997 

$455,274 
25,447 
2,980 
53,816 
1,577 
1,800 
164 

7,086,133 
113,978 
8,510 

334,573 
4,674 

104,792 
9,425 
5,650 
633 
724 
174 
3O 

128,292 
204 

388.065 

8.726.915 

445 
418 

3,539 
3.150 

7.552 



 

CiTY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 2 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 

FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30.1998 & 1997 

Distribution System : 
Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit- insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkrnen's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Suppliies 
Equipm ent Rental 
Maint of Bldg., Gds., & Equip. 
Disposal of Hazardous W aste 
Utilities 
Heating 
Telephone 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline, O il & Diesel 
Travel 
Dam ages 
Insure~nce 
Medical Supplies & Services 
Depreciation 

Totals 

Substations: 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Bldg.,Gds., & Equip 

Totals 

Total Direct Expenses 

See accom panying auditors' report 
103 

1998 

445,960 
21,376 
3,137 
59,759 
1,353 
1,800 
1,760 
12.552 

352,209 
2,047 

73 
711 

2,111 
7,814 
9.820 

200 
6,640 
1,307 

603.828 

1.534.457 

106 
65.524 

65.630 

$10,966,448 

1997 

462,083 
23,589 
2,394 
58,423 

444 
1,800 
1,450 
14.758 

306,422 
4,787 

73 
113 

2,049 
7,029 
15,053 

53 
88 

7,120 
961 

488.688 

1.397.377 

7 
17.030 

17.037 

$10,148,881 



 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 2 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 

FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30,1998 & 1997 

ndirect Expense: 
Gene[al & Adm inistrative Expense: 

Salaries 
Em pleyee Benefit- Pension 
Em pleyee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em pleyee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkrnen's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
W arehouse Expense 
M aintenance of Equipm ent 
Telephone 
Auto Allow ances 
Auto & Truck Repair 
G asoline, O il & Diesel 
Travel 
Audit Fees 
Legal Services 
Paying Agent Fees 
Bad Debt Expense 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
Interest 
Medical Supplies & Services 
M iscellaneous 
Postage 
Depreciation 

Totals 

See accom panying auditors' report. 

1998 

104 

288,508 
14,140 
2,785 
32,676 

156 
900 

2,273 
6,552 

110,000 
3,765 
3,242 
8,656 
1,006 
2.648 

14,771 
253 

3,811 
67,102 
9,047 
32,075 
24,408 

32 
10,114 
1,343 

117.383 

757,046 

1997 

228,064 
15,039 
2,242 
26,015 

73O 
1,100 
2,024 
6,058 

122,000 
2,341 
2,566 
7,433 
1,556 
2,405 
2,013 
14,068 

75O 
4,468 
79,405 
7,969 
31,582 
21,567 

157 
5,150 
750 

117.409 

704.861 



 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Schedule 2 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 & 1997 

Collection Office: 
Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkmen's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Suppllies 
M aintenance of Equipm ent 
Telephone 
Auto Allowance 
Travel 
Collection Costs 
Data Processing 
Cash (Over) Short 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
Medical Supplies & Services 
M iscellaneous 
Postage 

Totals 

M eter Readers: 
Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 

- - . Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Supplies 
Maintenance of Equipment 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline. Oil & Diesel 
Insurance 

Medical Supplies & Services 
M iscellaneous 

Total Indirect Expenses 

Totals 

See accom panying auditors' report. 
105 

t998 

84,577 
lO,465 
2,397 
28.094 

17,786 
15,839 
4,373 
2,619 

31 
11,232 

256 
336 
58 

2,354 
128 
3O0 

36,209 

317.954 

125,860 
6,831 
1,268 
20,258 

957 
7O0 

1,175 
862 

2,149 
4,807 
2,213 
223 

1.420 

168,723 

$1,243,723 

1997 

177,172 
10,787 
2,541 
25,154 

58 
1,000 
3OO 

19,983 
14,206 
2,337 
2,215 
970 

8,912 
13,049 

283 

2,564 
40 
518 

39.865 

321.954 

114,764 
6,802 
852 

16,846 
952 
600 

1,148 
519 

1,685 
5,165 
2,374 
272 

1.126 

153,105 

$1,179,920 



 

CITY OF RUSTO N, LO UISIANA Schedule 3 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

W ATER SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE OF O PERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 
FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 & 1997 

Direct Expense: 
W ater Production System 

Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Chem icals 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Bldg., Gds., & Equip 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline. O il & Diesel 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Medical Supplies & Services 
Depreciation 

Totals 

W ater Distribution System 
Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training 
Supplies 
Equipm ent Rental 
M aintenance of Equipm ent 
Utilities 
Auto & Truck Repair 
G asoline, O il & Diesel 
Travel 
Dam ages 
M edical Supplies & Se~ ices 
Depreciation 

Totals 

Total Direct Expense 

See accom panying auditors' report 

1998 

$45,020 
3,119 
253 

8,418 
297 
300 

95,847 
3,378 
76,175 
218,600 
6,284 
3O8 

1.513 

32 
59,313 

518,857 

140,149 
6,791 
1,084 

22,467 
892 
800 

7,312 
14,828 
83,768 

115 
5,573 
6,152 

385 

193.525 

483.841 

$1,002,698 
= = = = = = = = = = ~ = 
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1997 

$52,036 
3,246 
189 

7,072 
281 
300 

61,598 
4,121 
36,803 
210,656 
4,384 
437 

1,524 

32 
65,299 

447.978 

118,535 
6,623 
1,243 
17,990 

693 
6OO 
185 

6,637 
7,842 

122,991 
173 

8,261 
7,450 
600 
158 
~21 

123.084 

423.186 

$871,164 
= ~ = = = = = = = = = = =  



 

CITY OF RUSTO N, LOUISIANA Schedule 3 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

W ATER SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE O F O PERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 

FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30.1998 & 1997 

ndirect Expense: 
G eneral & Adm inistrative Expense: 

Salaries - Regular 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Office Supplies 
W arehouse 
M aintenance of Bldg., Gnds., & Equip 
Telephone 
Auto & Truck Repair 
G asoline, O il & Diesel 
Legal Services 
Travel 
Audit Fees 
Paying Agent Fees 
Bad Debt Expense 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 
M iscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total Indirect Expense 

See accom panying auditors' report. 

1998 

107 

61,924 
3,653 
5,696 
2OO 
161 
115 

16,000 
1,572 
2,496 
439 

1,564 
100 

6,621 
600 

8,634 
993 

16,094 
1 

39.378 

1997 

64,434 
3,951 
5,056 
2OO 
85 
255 

11,000 
129 

2,249 

2,673 
15,291 

617 
6,306 
800 

14,188 
943 

16,573 
40 

42.014 

$166,241 $186,804 



 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 4 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

SEW ERAGE SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 
FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 & 1997 

Direct Expense: 
Sewerage Collection System : 

Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniforrns 
W orkrnen's Com pensation 
Unernploym ent Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
Equipm ent Rental 
M aintenance of Bldg., Gds., & Equip 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto & Truck Repair 
Gasoline, Oil & Diesel 
Travel 

Dam ages 
Insurance 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Depreciation 

Totals 

Sewerage Treatm ent Plant: 
Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit- Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Chem icals 
Perm its 
Laboratory Testing 
Supplies 
M aint of Bldg., Gds., & Equip. 

See accom panying auditors' report. 
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1998 

209,267 
10,402 
2,236 
24,639 

997 
900 

2,919 
416 

17,345 
1,500 

106,304 
86,986 
1,285 
6,234 
11,698 

794 

382 
258.431 

742.735 

77,727 
3,599 
768 

7,928 
288 
8O0 
309 

20,739 
408 

16,042 
4,135 
30.391 

1997 

$193,769 
10,463 
1,972 
19,377 

781 
900 
69 
550 

17,254 
4,500 
90,539 
86,435 

698 
6,084 
9,658 
478 
430 

3,000 
657 

236.677 

684.291 

105,034 
4,468 
2,642 
9,466 
180 
800 

18,476 
4,193 
15,414 
2,887 
31.649 



 

CITY OF RUSTON, LO UISIANA Schedule 4 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

SEW ERAGE SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE O F O PERA TING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 
FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30. 1998 & 3997 

Sewerage Treatment Plant (Continued) 
Utilities 
Telephone 
Auto & Truck Repair 
G as, Oil, & Diesel 
Travel 
M edical Supplies & Services 
Insurance 
Depreciation 

Totals 

Sludge Disposal: 
Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
Uniform s 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Perm its 
Laboratory Testing 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Bldg., G ds., & Equip 
Utilities 
Telephone 

" - Auto & Truck Repair 
G asoline, O il & Diesel 
Travel 
Legal Serv ices 
M edical Supplies & Services 

Totals 

Total Direct Expenses 

See accom panying auditors' report 

109 

1998 

116 
1 
407 
898 
930 
354 

47 
738 

93.626 

378.134 

34,326 
1,854 

460 
8,895 
202 
200 
438 

1,500 
5,418 
4,472 
2,947 
1,075 
479 
256 

1.191 

67 

63.780 

1997 

136,357 
2,136 
738 

1,777 
680 
168 
791 

87.606 

425.462 

24,224 
1,408 
331 

5,821 
2O8 
3O0 
434 

1,500 
5,708 
3,342 
2,729 
4,868 
539 
218 
669 
301 
20 
134 

52,754 

$1,162,507 



 

CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA Schedule 4 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

SEW ERAG E SYSTEM FUND 
SCHEDULE O F OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTM ENT 
FO R THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM BER 30, 1998 & 1997 

ndirect Expenses: 
G eneral & Adm inistrative Expense: 

Salaries 
Em ployee Benefit - Pension 
Em ployee Benefit - FICA Tax 
Em ployee Benefit - Insurance 
W orkm en's Com pensation 
Training of Personnel 
Supplies 
M aintenance of Bldg., Gds., & Equip 
Heating 
Telephone 
Auto & Truck Repair 
G asoline, O il & Diesel 
Travel 

Audit Fees 
Legal Fees 
Consulting 
Paying Agent Fees 
Bad Debt Expense 
Dues & Subscriptions 
Insurance 

M iscellaneous 
Postage 
Depreciation 
W arehouse Expense 

Totals 

Pest Control: 
Chem icals 
Train:ing of Personne 
Supplies 
G as, Oil, & Diesel 
Travel 

Totals 

Total Indirect Expense 

See accom panying auditors' report 

110 

1998 

49,926 
2,926 
725 

10,833 
200 
375 

1,327 
599 
536 

1,997 
339 
650 

7,132 
1,228 
13,349 
20,263 
18,442 

87 
16,831 

70 
9O 

142,294 
5.340 

295.556 

87O 

89 

959 

$296,515 
~ = = ~ = = = = = = = =  

1997 

$46,247 
3,142 
706 

9,259 
200 

949 
114 
501 
56 
83 

584 
547 

6,792 
863 

3,500 
21,788 
12,990 

284 
17,364 

481 

149,071 
5,000 

280.521 

522 
10 

134 
109 

775 

$281,296 
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1900 Deposit Guaranty Tower 
333 Texas Street 

Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Report on Com pliance and oil Internal Control O ver 
Financial Reporting Based on an A udit of Financial Statem ents 
Perform ed in Accordance w ith Governm ent A uditing Standards 

The ttonorablc M em bers of the Board of Aldermen and 
Honorable Dan Hollingsworth, M ayor 

City of Ruston, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the financial statements of the City of Rnston, Louisiana ("City") as of and for the year 
ended Septem ber 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 5, 1999, which was qualified 
because insufficient audit evidence exists to support the City's disclosures w ith respect to the Year 2000 
issue. W e also disclaimed an opinion on the special revenue fund type and the Section 8 Existing 1 lousing, 
Section 8 M odrehab ttousing and the Section 8 V oucher Housing special revenue funds because the City 
did not m aintain adequate accounting records to determ ine the financial position and results of operations 
of those funds. Except as discussed in the preceding two sentences, we conducted our audit in accordance 
w ith generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Com pliance 
A s part of obtaining reasonable assurance about w hether the City's financial statem ents arc free of m aterial 
m isstatem ent, w e perform ed tests of its com pliance w ith certain provisions of law s, regulations, contracts 
and grants, noncom pliance w ith which could have a direct and m aterial effect on the determ ination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on contpliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed instances of noncom pliance that are required to be reported under Government Audithlg 
Standards which arc described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item s 
98-1 and 98-3. 

hrternal Control O ver Financial Reporting 
In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statelnents and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we 
noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we 
consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve m atters com ing to our attention 
relating lo significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting 
that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City's ability to record, process, summarize, and report 
financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. Reportable 
conditions arc described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as itelns 98-2, 
98-4, an,:l 98-6. 

IIII %~i,'.,",~,', ~,i'~,',!: i,!,'i',!',','",;'.'i','ii 



A nratezizd w eakness is a condition in w hicb the design or operation of one or m ole of the intelnal control 
com ponents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in am ounts that would be 
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected w ithin a timely 
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the 
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control 
that m ight be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable 
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions 
described above, we consider item s 98-2, 98-4, and 98-5 to be material weaknesses. W e also notcd other 
m atters involving the internal control over financial reporting, which we have reported to m anagem eut of 
the City in a separate letter dated M arch 5, 1999. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the M ayor, Board of A lderm en, m anagem ent, 
State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended 1:o be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

M arch 5, 1999 



1900 Deposit Guaranty Tower 
333 Texas Street 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Report on Com pliance w ith R equirem ents 
Applicable to Each M ajor Program and Internal Control Over 

Com pliance in Accordance w ith O M B Circular A-133 

The Honorable M em bers of the Board of A lderm en and 
Ilonorable Dan Hollingsworth, M ayor 

City of Ruston, Louisiana: 

Com pliance 
W e have andited the compliance of the City of Ruston, Louisiana ("City") with tile types of compliance 
requirements described in tile US'. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supldement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 
1998. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance w ith the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility o1" 
the City's m anagem ent. O ur responsibility is to express an opinion on rite City's com pliance based on om 
audit. 

W e conducted our audit of com pliance in accordance w itb generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in G overnm ent Auditing Standards, issned by tile 

Cmnptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Locol Governments, 
and Non..Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncom pliance w ith the types or" 

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance 
with those requirements and perform ing such other procedures as we considered necessary in rite 
circum stances. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does nol 
provide a legal determ ination on the City's compliance with those requirements. 

As described in item 98-5 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the City did not 
comply with requirements regarding reporting that are applicable to its United States I)epartment of 
ttousing and Urban Development - Section 8 major program. Compliance with such requirements is 
necessary, in our opinion, for the City to comply with requirements applicable to that program . 

In our opinion, except tbr the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City complied, in 
all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to its major federal 
program for tile year ended Septem ber 30, 1998. The results of our auditing procedures also disclosed 
other instances of noncom pliance w ith those requirements thai are required to be reported in accordance 
w ith O M B Circular A-133 mtd w hich are described in the accom panying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as item s 98-6, 98-7, and 98-8. 

llIl 



Internal C ontrol O ver C om pliance 
The managenm nt of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
com pliartee w ittl requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal program s. In 
planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a nmjor federal program in order to determine 
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on 
internal eontrol over com pliance in accordance w ith OM B Circular A-133. 

W e noted certain m atters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider 
to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters com ing to our attention relating to 
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over com pliance that

, in our 
judgment, could adversely affect the City's abJlity to administer a major federal program in accordance 
w ith applicable requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. A reportable conditiou is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 98-5. 

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance w ith applicable 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts mad granls "that would be material in relation 1o a nmjor federal 
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal 
course of perform ing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over com pliance 
would not necessarily disclose all nmtters in the interual control that m ight be reportable conditions and, 

accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be nmterial 
weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions described above, we consider item 984 to be a 
n/aterial w eakness. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Aw ards 
W e have audited the prim ary govern ment financial statem ents of the City as of and for the year ended 
Septem ber 30, 1998, and tro ve issued our report thereon dated M arch 5, 1999, w hich w as qualified because 
insufficient audit evidence exists to support the City's disclosures w ith respect to the Y ear 2000 issue. W e 
also disclaimed an opinion on the special revenue fund type and the Section 8 Existing Housing, Section 8 
M odrehab Housing and the Section 8 Voucher Housing special revenue funds because the City did not 
m aintain adequate accounting records to determ ine the financial position and results of operations of those 
funds. O ur audit was performed for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the prim ary governm ent 
financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OM 13 Circular A-133 and is not a required part 
of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statem ents however, the scope of our work w as not sufficient to enable us to express, 
and we do not express, an opinion on the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 

This report is inieuded solely for the information and use of the M ayor, Board of Aldermen, manageinent, 
State of ;Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

M arch 5. 1999 



G rant Title 

CITY O F RUSTO N, LO UISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended September 30, 1998 

United Stales Department of tiousing and 
Urban Development: 
D irect Paym ents: 
Section 8 - Existing Housing 
Section 8 - M oderate Rehabilitation 
Section 8 - Vouchers 

Total United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Developm ent 
Direct Paym ents 

Pass through Louisiana Departm ents: 
Com munity Development Block Grant 
D ecentralized A rts G rant 
Sew er D em onstrated N eed G rant 
D .A .R.T. CD BG Program 

Total United States D epartm ent of 
t lousing and U rban D evelopm ent 
Pass Through 

Total United States Department of 
Itousing and Urban D evelopment 

Federal 
CFDA 
N um ber 

14.857 
14.856 
14.855 

N/A 
14.219 
14.231 

G rant 
N um ber 

FW -2078 
FW -2159 
FW -2252 

99-07-31-00 
107-700091 
10-8370 

Expenditures 
Septem ber 30 

1998 

585,594 
46,208 
83.587 

715.389 

435 
18,723 
80,260 

99.418 

914,807 

Federal t!m ergency M anagem ent Agency 
Flood Hazard M  itigation Grant N/A 1012-061-0003 72,98 

Total federal assistance 

See accom panying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

987.788 



(1) General 

CITY O F RU STO N, LO UISIANA 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

The accom panying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the City of Ruston, Louisiana and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The 
infi~rmation in this schedule is presented in accordance w ith the requirements of OM B Circular 
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some 
amounts presented in tilts schedule m ay differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation 
of, the financial statem ents. 



CITY O F RUSTON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

(1) Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statem ents 

Y ear ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

~ The type of report issued on tile general-purpose financial statements: flualified_ opinion~scope 
lim itation related to Year 2000 disclosure. D isclaimer o~ .inion on the spcciaLrevej!tje fund l~ 3~e 
and the Section 8 Existin~ Housing. Section 8 M odrehab Housing and Sectiou 8 Voucher 
Housin~ Soecial Revenue funds because the City did not maintain adem mte acconntin~ rccords 

~ Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the Financial Statem ents 
y e~ M aterial weaknesses: yes 

~ N oncom pliance which is m aterial to the general-purpose financial statem ents: 
.yes 

Federal A w ards 

~ Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs: .yes 
M aterial w eaknesses: yefi 

~ The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: qualified op.i_njon- 

~ Any audit findiugs which are required to be reported under section 510(a) of OM B Circular 
A-133: yes 

~ Major programs: 
United States l)epartmenl of Housing and Urban Development 

Section 8 (CFDA Numbers: 14.857, 14.856 and 14.855) 

~ Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: ~;30_0~Q00 

~ Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under section 530 of OM B Circular A-133: !1o 

(2) t"iudiugs Related to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards: 

Item : 98- 

(~rij e~ 'ia or specific requirement: R.S. 39:1308 requires that 
otherw ise finalize and im plem ent the budget for an ensuiug fisca 
com pleted prior to the end of the fiscal ),ear in progress. 

all action necessary to adopt and 
year be takeu in open m eeting and 

Condition: The City did not approve their fiscal year 1998 budget prior to the end of the 1997 fisca 
year. 



CITY O F RUSTO N, LO U ISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Contiluled 

~uestioned costs: None 

Context: N ot applicablc 

Year ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

Effect: 'File City operated for a portion of fiscal year 1998 w ithout a legally adopted budget 

Cause: Controversy over budget 

Recom m endation: The City should take neccssary steps to adopt and implcment file budget within 
the legal deadline. 

M an~ elncnl ~s response 

A) Name of Contact Responsible - M ayor, Board of Aldermen, Treasurer 
B) Corrective Action Planned - W e plan to submit a budget proposal and have it adopted within the 

legal deadline. 
C) Anticipated Completion Date- September 30, 1999. 

Item : 98-2 

Criteria or specific requirem ent: Not applicable 

Condition: The form er M ayor and the former City Attorney seldom com m nnicaled on issues 
affecting legal matters of the City for tile fiscal year ended September 30, 1998. Proper management 
of the legal affairs of the City could not be accomplished w ithout the M ayor, the Board of A ldermen 
and the City Attorney working together. Significant exposure could exist that was not being properly 
reviewed. 

Ouesliolled costs: Noue. 

C ontext: Sight,cant exposure could exist that w as not being properly review ed by all elected 
officials. 

Effect: Legal affairs of the City were not appropriately managed durit~g the fiscal year. Significant 
exposure could exist that was not being properly reviewed by all elected officials. 

Cause: Lack of com munication between tile former M ayor and the former City Attorney. 

Recom m endation: The M ayor, tile Board of A ldermen and the City Attorney should w ork together 
for proper m anagem ent of the legal affairs of the City. 

M alla~Clnent~s rcsllonse 

A) Name of Contact Responsible - M ayor, Board of Aldermen, City Attorney. 
B) Corrective Action Planned - The M ayor, Board of Aldertneu and City Attor~acy plata on worklug 

together to ensure that the legal affairs of the City are properly nm naged. 
C) Anticipated Completion Dale - January 4, 1999. 



Item : 98-3 

CITY O F R USTO N , LO UISIAN A 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 

Year ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

C riteria or s mlLgC_ ifie requirement: R.S. 39:1225 requires that the amount of security pledged as 
collateral for deposits be equal to one hundred percent of the amount of collected funds on deposit to 
the credit of each depositing authority except that portion of tile deposits insured by any governmental 
agency insuring bank deposits. 

('on. dition: At September 30, 1998, 
collateralized by pledged securities nor 

~)uestioned costs: None 

the bank deposits of tile City totaling $252,169 were not 
nsured by a govern m ental agency. 

Context: One depository account of the City was not appropriately identified as public fim ds by the 
Bank. 

Effect: Funds of the City are at risk in the event of a bank failure 

Cause: One depository account of tile City was not appropriately identified as public fu 
Bank. Lack ofm onitoring control by the City. 

Recom m endation: The City should review the collateralization of deposits on a monthly basis for 
com pliance. 

l~lla Ila~e nl ell [ ~s resDollse 

A) Name of Contact Responsible - Treasurer, Controller 
B) Corrective Action Planned --. ]'he Treasurer and Controller will monitor deposits 

basis to ascertain that pledged securities eollateralized are adequate. 
C) Anticipated Completion Date-M arch 31, 1999, 

Item : 98-4 

C rilerla or sl~eeific reonirelalent N ot applicable 

Condition: Tbe City has not adequately documented their eflbrts of compliance regarding the Year 
2000 issue. The City has not formed an oversight committee or named an individual to oversee *.tie 
City's overall Year 2000 com pliance efforts. 

.Questioned costs: Nolle 

Context: N ot applicable 

Effect: Com puter system s, hardware and em bedded chip technology m ay m alfunction and could 
cause disruptions in service to citizens and operations of the City. 

Cause: Com puter system s, hardware and em bedded chips m ay not be Year 2000 com pliant 



CITY O F RUSTO N , LOU ISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 

Year ended September 30, 1998 

Recom m endation: The City should take steps to document their efforts regarding 
compliance, in addition, the City should either appoint an oversight com m ittee or 
individual to oversee Year 2000 com pliance Cityw ide. 

1VIa n:~l~elilent ~s Yes|)oHsc 

Year 2000 

A) Name of Contact Responsible - M ayor, Board of Aldermen, Department Heads 
B) Corrective Action Planned - The City will continue in its efforts to ideutify and correct any Year 

2000 problem s. This effort has been given the highest priority and full support of the M ayor. 
C) Anticipated Completion Date- September 30, 1999. 

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards 

item : 98-5 

G rant: Section 8 Rental Voucher Program ; Lower Incom e ttouslng Assistance Program -Section 8 
"

M oderate Rehabilitation; Section 8 Rental Certificate Program 

C FD A : 14.855, 14.856, and 14.857 

G rant N um ber FW -2252, FW -2159 and FW -2078 

Aw ard Year: 1998 

Specific R etluirem ent 

Condition: Required reports (ttUD-52681, Voucher for Payment of Annual Contributions and 
Operating Statement and IIUD-52595, Balance Sheet for Section 8 and Public Housing) did not agree 
or reconcile to accom/ting records. 

Context: The accounting records of the Section 8 office are not reconciled to the general ledger. 
Reported am ounts to t-IUD do not agree and are not reconciled to the general ledger for program s 
under CFDA numbers 14.855. 14.856 and 14.857. 

Questioned Costs: $715,389 

Effect: N o procedures in place to periodically reconcile the general ledger to the records of the 
Sectiola 8 office. 

R ecom m endation: Each m onth the records of the Section 8 office 
general ledger. D ifferences should be investigated and cleared tim ely 
be reviewed by someone other than the preparer. 

M ana(!enlenCs R esponse 

should be rc,~onciled to the 
These reconciliations should 

A) Name of Contact Responsible ~- Treasurer, Controller 
B) Corrective Action Planned - The Treasurer and Controller will work towards reconciling the 

Section 8 office records to the City's general ledger. 
C) Antk:ipated Completion Date-. September 30, 1999. 



CITY OF RUSTON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Contflmcd 

Year ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

Item : 98-6 

G rant: Section 8 Rental Certificate Program 

CFDA : 14.857 

G rant N um ber: FW -2078 

A w ard Y ear: 1998 

SDec'ifie Ft, eauirem ent 

Condition: Required documentation showing that, at the time of adm ission, the tenant met preference 
criteria that determ ined the tenant's place on the waiting list was not maintained in the tenant's filc. 

Conlext: O f a sam ple often, one exception was noted 

Q uestioned Costs: Nolle 

Effect: By not maintaining documentation which shows that, at adm ission, the tenant m et preference 
criteria, the City ca++ not ascertain that the tenant was properly placed on the waiting list. 

Recom m endation: Docum entation supporting preference criteria for waiting list placem ent should 
bc maintained in each tenant's file. Tenant files should be reviewed for completeness once thc 
Section 8 contract is finalized. This will ensure that all required documentation is on file. 

Nlana~cm eni's R esDoase 

A) Name of Contact Responsible - Section 8 Office Personnel 
B) Corrective Action Planned - Section 8 offi ce personnel will review tenant files for completeness 

once the Section 8 contract is finalized. 
C) Anticipated Completion Date - Jane 30, 1999. 

Item : 98-7 

G rant: Section 8 Rental V oucher Program ; Lower Incom e Housing Assistance Program -Section 8 
M oderate Rehabilitation; Section 8 Rental Certificate Program 

CFDA: 14.855, 14.856, and 14.857 

G rant N um ber: FW -2252. FW -2159 and FW -2078 

Aw ard Y ear: 1998 

Sl~eeifie R ecluirem ent Special Test & Provisions - Utility Allowances 



CITY O F RUSTO N , LO U ISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued 

Year ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

Colldition: Utility allowance schedule has not been adjusted to reflect current price changes since 
1992. Per 24 CFR sections 882.510 and 887.361, utility allowances must be reviewed and adjusted, if 
necessary, at least once a year. 

Context: The effect applies to the entire population in which utility allowance is applicable. 

~uestioned Costs: Unknown 

Effect: ]'he City is in violation of program com pliance requirem ents. 

Recom m endation: Tile utility allowance schedule should be reviewed annually for any potential 
adj ustnlents. 

M aoai~em enl~s Resoonse: 

A) Name of Contact Responsible -- Section 8 Offi ce Personnel 
B) Corrective Action Planned - Section 8 office personnel will review annually the utility allowance 

schedule for any potential adjustments. 
C) Anticipated Completion Date-June30, 1999. 

Item : 98-8 

G rant: Section 8 Rental Certificate Program 

CFi)A : 14.857 

G rant N um ber: FW -2078 

Aw ard Year: 1998 

Soecific Reouirem ent Special Tests & Provisions - Contract Rents 

Condition: Docum entation of renla reasonableness was not perform ed 

Context: O f a sam ple of 25, nile exception was noted 

_Que,,dioned Costs: Unknown 

Effeel: Tenant files should contain documentation ofrentM reasonableness 

Recom m endation: Tenant files should be reviewed for com pleteness once tile Section 8 contract is 
finaliized. This w ill ensure that all required documentation is on file. 

M anagem ent's ]lesl)onse 

A) Name of Contact Responsible -Section 8 Offi ce Personnel 
B) Corrective Action Planned - Section 8 office personnel will review tenant files for completeness 

once the Section 8 contract is finalized to ensure that all required documentation is on file. 

C) Anticipated Completion Date-June 30, 1999. 

2 
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1900 Deposit Guar~nty Tower 
333 ~exas Street " . 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

The Honorable M em bers of the Board of Aldermen and 
ttonorable Dan Hollingsworth, M ayor 

City of Ruston, Louisiana: 

W e have: audited the financial statements of the City of Ruston, Louisiana, (tile "City") as of 
Septem ber 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 5, 1999, w hich w as qualified because 
insufficient audit evidence exists to support the City's disclosures w ith respect to the Year 2000 issue. W e 
also disclabned an opinion on the special revenue fund type and the Section 8 Existing Housiug, Section 8 
M odrehab ]lousing and the Section 8 Voucher Housing special revenue funds because the City did not 
maintain adequate accounting records to determ ine the financial position and results of operations of those 
funds. U nder generally accepted auditing standards, we are providing you w ith the following inform ation 
related to the conduct of our audit: 

O ur R esponsibilities U nder G enerally A ccepted A uditing Standards 

W e have a responsibility to conduct our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. In 
carrying out this responsibility, w e planned and perform ed the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material m isstatement, whether caused by eiror or fraud. 
Because of the nature of audit evidence and the characteristics of fraud, we are to obtain reasonable, not 
absolute, assurance that m aterial m isstatements are detected. W e have no responsibility to plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that m isstatements, whether caused by error or fraud, that 
are not m aterial to the financial statem ents are detected. 

In addition, in planning and performing our audit, we considered internal control in order to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. An audit does 
not include exam ining the effectiveness of intern al control and does not provide assurance on internal 
control. 

Furtherm ore, our audit was not designed to, and does not, provide any assurance that a Year 2000 issnc 
which may exist w ill bc identified, on the adequacy of the City's remediatlon plans related to Year 2000 
financial or operational issues, or on whether the City is or will becom e Y ear 2000 com pliant on a tim ely 
basis. Year 2000 com pliance is the responsibility of m anagem ent. 

Illll , tll ,ii, H,~i h :l i ,,, ,, ~, i, i:ll 
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Significant A ccounting Policies 

The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in note 1 to the financial statements. 
W e noted no transactions entered into by tile City that were both significant and unusual and that, under 
professional standards, we are required to inform you of, or transactions for which there is a lack of 
authoritative gtfidance or consensus. 

M auagem ent Judgm ents and Accounting Estim ates 

Accountin~, estim ates are an integral part of the financial statem ents prepared by m anagem ent and are 

based upon management's current judgments. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 

affecting them may differ markedly from management's current judgments. 

M anageraent's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable in its enterprise funds, and their 
estim ate of claim s payable in the insurance funds are based primarily on an analysis of historical trends 
and knowledge of certain accounts. W e evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
allowances in determ ining that these allowances are reasonable in relation to the financial statem ents of 

the City taken as a w hole. 

The City is currently carrying in the Ambulance Fund a receivable of $140,000 from the Lincoln Parish 
Police Jury for services rendered outside the city limits. Part of this receivable balance dates back over 
three years and continues to increase each year. Tile City believes these funds w ill ultim ately be collected, 
however, there is not a signed contract establishing the amount to be paid to the City for providing, 
ambulance services outside the city limits and the police jury will not pay the balance until a signed 
contract is in place, lfa contract can not be negotiated soon, we believe the receivable should be written 

off. 

Significant Audit Adjustmeuts 

W e proposed no corrections of the financial statements that could, in our judgment, either individually or 
in the aggregate, have a significant effect on the City's financial reporting process. W e could not 

determine if adjustments were necessary to the Section 8 special revenue funds; therefore we disclaimed 
an opinion. 

D isagreem ents W ith M anagem ent 

There we:re no disagreem ents w ith m anagement on financial accountiug and reporting m atters w hich, if not 
satisfactorily resolved, would have caused a m odification of our report on the City's financial statements. 
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Consult~Ltion W ith O ther Accountants 

To the best of our knowledge, m anagement has not consulted with or obtained opinions, written or oral, 

from other independent accountants during the past year which were subject to the requirements of AU 
625, Reports on the Application of Accounting Principles. 

M ajor Issues Discussed W ith M anagement Prior to Retention 

W e generally discuss a variety of m atters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors, ttowcver, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and ovr responses were not ,n 
condition to our retention. 

Difficulties Encountered in Perform ing the A udit 

For the year ended September 30, 1998, the City did not m aintain adequate accountiug records to 
determine the financial position and results of operations for the Section 8 Existing ltousiag, Section 8 
M odrehab Housing and Section 8 Voucher Housing Special Revenue Funds. It was not practicable to 
extend our auditing procedures sufficiently to satisfy ourselves as to the fairness of financial position and 
results of operations for those funds as of Septem ber 30, 1998. 

As noted in our managem ent letter, the M ayor and City Attorney do not comm unicate frequently on the 
City's legal issues. O ur review of the City's potential legal issues w as difficult due to the fact that the City 
Attorney was not handling all legal issues. It was difficult to satisfy ourselves flint w e were adviscd of all 
legal issues and that the potential outcome of the suits against the City or potential unasserted claim s werc 

properly evaluated. 

This information is iutended solely for the information and use of the Board of A ldermen, the M ayor, 
m anagement, and the Legislative Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

V ery truly yours 
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C O N FID EN TIA L 

Tile l lonorable M embers of the Board of Aldermen and 
1 lonorable Dan Hollingsworth, M ayor 

City of Ruston, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the financial statements of the City of Ruston, Louisiana (the "City") for the year 
ended September 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 5, 1999. In planning and 
perform ing our audit of the financial statements of the City, we considered internal control in order to 
determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
slatem cnls. A n audit does not include exam ining tile effectiveness of internal control and does not 
provide assurance on internal control. 

1 lowcver, we noted certain m atters involving internal control and its operation that we consider to be a 
reportable condition under standards established by the Am erican Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants. Reportable conditions are matters coming to our altention that, in our judgment, relate to 
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control and could adversely affect the 
organization's ability to record, process, summ arize, and report financial data consistent w ith the 
assertions of m anagem ent in tile financial statem ents. O ur consideration of internal control w ould not 
necessarily disclose all matters in internal control that m ight be reportable conditions. 

A m aterial w eakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or m ore internal 
control com ponenls does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or fraud in amounts 
thai would be m aterial in relation to the financial statem ents being audited m ay occnr and nol he 
detected w ithin a tim ely period by em ployees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigued 
functions. W e noted the follow ing m atters that we consider to be a m aterial weakness: 

Y EAR 2000 

M any com puterized system s, including both hardware and software applications, use only two digits, 
rather than four, to record the year in a date field. These systems may recognize the year 2000, which 
is entered into the com puter as 00, as the year 1900 or some other date, resulting in errors when the 
dales art," used in computations and comparisons. In addition, some computerized system s do not 
properly perform calculations w ith dates beginning in 1999, because these system s use the digits "99" 
in date fields to represent som c|bing other than the year 1999, Such problem s are known as lhc Year 
2000 Issue. The Year 2000 Issue m ay manifest itself before, on or after January 1, 2000, and its 
effects on operations and financial reporting may range from m inor errors to catastrophic systems 
failure. 



The ttonorable M em bers of the Board of A lderm en and 
ltonorable Dan Hollingsworth, M ayor 

M arch 5, 1999 
Page 2 

Tile Year 2000 is a significant concern that should be addressed as soon as possible. Failure to 
adequalely address tbe Year 2000 could result in costly and significant application program failures 
that prevent the City from perform ing its normal processing activities. These activities would 

encompass all departments within tile City (Police, Fire, Electric, etc.). 

The City has not establisbed a formal Year 2000 committee or a Year 2000 project plan to oversee 
efforts to becom e Year 2000 compliant. Currently, each individual departm ent is addressing the Year 
2000 issue on its own. M inimal documentation exists of each department's Year 2000 status, m ission 
critical systems, contingency plans, etc. The City has nine months remaining to identify and correct 

any Year 2000 problems. In order for a project of this magnitude to succeed, its nmst be given the 
highest priority and full support of the M ayor. It is critical that someone be appointed to organize and 
document the City's efforts for Year 2000 compliance and report progress to the M ayor. 

l nv_ .etjto~ 5~oqfS~vstems 

The City has not conducted a formal inventory of all of its computer systems and hardware. The City 
has identified the financial adm inistration systems requiring replacemeut for Year 2000 compliance, 
however, no efforts have been made to include individual departmental systems or PCs in this 
inventory. The remainder of the City has no organized effort regarding Year 2000 and has m ade little 
to no progress in this area. 

Failure to inventory all systems could result in critical systems not being identified and potcntia 
failures to these system s. The City should immediately begin to inventory all systems and hardware 
This inventory should be used to identify critical systems. 

Ris_k As:~e~sst?lent 

"/'he City has not conducted a risk assessment of its critical processes or an inventory of its critica 
equipm ent. 

Docum enting inventories and the outcome of a risk assessment allows for collaboration by all involved 
parties and helps to ensure critical processes and equipment are not forgotten. In addition, 
docum enling these activities m ay reduce the City's liability in the event of a Year 2000 failure. 

Tim City should conduct a form al risk assessm ent of its critical processes. The entire Year 2000 

project learn should participate and agree with the outcome of this activity. The risk assessment 
process should be docum ented for future reference. 

The City should document a detailed inventory  of all equipment related to its critical processes. '/'his 
inventory should be used to identify what equipment has been stated to be Year 2000 ready, as well as 
what equipment has been tested for Year 2000 compliance. 
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Contingency Plans 

The City has not docmnented contingency plans for potential failures of systems. Critical systems 
shoukl be identified and contingency plans developed for the system s in file event of system failurcs. 

"lhird Parties 

The City has not contacted its business partners on their Year 2000 status 

Critical processes often indirectly rely on outside organization involvement. For exam ple, city's often 
rely on electronic transfers from banks as part of their financial processing and providers of natural gas 
or diesel fuel are often critical for equipment operation. The City may be held liable if one of its 
critical processes fail due to a provider that was not contacted about its Year 2000 compliance. 

The City should identify all third parties involved in its critical processes or which indirectly add 
liability, and establish deadlines to contact these entities about their Year 2000 readiness. Deadlines 
should include enough tim e to find replacem ents for providers that w ill not be Year 2000 com pliant. 

D isclosure of Year 2000 Status 

The City attorney's office has not established guidelines for disclosing the City's Year 2000 status 
The attorn ey's office also has not assessed the City's potential liability due to Y ear 2000 failures. 

Inaccurate disclosures of the Year 2000 project status can leave the City liable for damages to 
individuals who use this information as assurance of the City's services. A liability assessm ent by the 

city attorney's office can identify additional items that need to be included in the Year 2000 project 
and ensure the City has adequate protection against damage claims. 

The City should publish guidelines requiring all disclosures related to Year 2000 be approved by tile 
City attorney's office. The City atlom ey's office should prom ptly assess the City's potential liabilily 
due to Year 2000 failures. 

M anagenlent~s R espollSe 

The City of Rustou is aware of the significance of the Year 2000 issue. The City w ill continue in its 
efforts to identify and correct any Year 2000 problem s. This effort has been given the highest priority 
and full support of the M ayor. 
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LEG AL M ATTERS 

During our previous audit, we noted 1hat the M ayor and the City Attorney seldom conm m nicated oil 
issues affecting lel~,al m atters of the City. Certain items were being handled by the M ayor, risk 
managem ent, and outside counsel w ith no input from the City Attorney and m atters were being 
handled by the City Attorn ey with no input from the M ayor. In addition, ordinances also prohibited 
the M ayer from obtaining outside legal assistance without approval by the Board of Aldermen or 
obtaining an Attorney General opinion without the approval of the Board of Alderm en. 

This was a complicated issue w ith both sides baving strong views as to tile reasons for the lack of 
eom m tm ieation and coordination. It was also a bridget issue because there are not enough funds to pay 
the City Attorney and outside counsel on every issue that m ight arise. W hile the City now has a new 
M ayor and City attorney, and these issues no longer exist, we believe that for the year ended 
Septem ber 30, 1998, significant exposure could exist that was not being properly addressed. W e feel 
that for the year ended Septem ber 30, 1998, proper m anagem ent of the legal affairs of the City was not 
accom plished. 

Tile City Attorney should be the focal point of all legal issues whether or not the case is being handled 
by him . The City Attorney should represent the interest of the City of Ruston i.e., citizens of J,~.uston, 
the Board of A ldermen and the M ayor. If he has conflicts in representing all parties then he should so 
indicate and outside counsel obtained. 

M anagem ent's R esponse 

W e agree with this finding. The issues no longer exist; however, for the year ended September 30 
1998, w e agree that significant exposure could exist that was not being properly addressed. 

SECTION 8 H OUSING PRO GRAM  

As noted in the schedule of findings and questioned costs of our single audit report, the financial 
reports for the Section 8 Housing Program did not agree or reconcile to the accounting records of the 
City. The Section 8 Housing program funds each have a fund balance w hich can not be reconciled to 
the federal reports. These program s are usually on a reim bursem ent basis; therefore the fund balances 
need to be explained. Unlocated differences were noted and could not be resolved by either the 
Section 8: Housing personnel or Accounting Departm ent persomlel. Currently, there is no 
reconciliation process in p/ace between the records of the Section 8 office and the Accounting 
Departm ent and the Section 8 personnel are not able to accurately complete tile required reports or 
reconcile to the accounting records. W e recom m end that these records be reconciled on a m onthly 
basis. P, eeonciling differences should be investigated and cleared each m onth. 
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M anagem ent's R esponse 

The Section 8 ttousing Program financial reports w ill be reconciled to tile accounting records of the 
City of Ruston. W e agree that the reconciliation should be performed monthly and we w ill work to 
have it accom plished. 

A lthough not considered to be reportable conditions, we also noted the follow ing item s during our 
audit w hich we would like to bring to your attention: 

CA SH  A ND IN V ESTM ENTS 

During our audit, several deficiencies were noted concerning the management and m onitoring over 
cash and investm ents. W e noted the City has over sixty cash accounts at various financial institutions. 
Several ol~these accounts have large cash balances in which little or no activity has occurred within the 
last year. W e recom m end that the City review the need for tile large num ber of individual bank 
accounts and determ ine if any can be consolidated to provide for better m anagement of cash and 
inlprovements in yield on cash balances. 

In addition, a num ber of the cash and investments accounts were found to have no monitoring 
procedures performed throughout the year (reconciliation from statement to general ledger, review of 
returns on investments, review of investment options, etc.). The City should reconcilc all cash and 
investm ent accounts on a m onthly basis. In addition, the City should review the current investm ent 
policy and determ ine if updated procedures are necessary. 

M anagem ent's R esponse 

W e w ill review tile need for the large number of individual bank accounts and determ ine if any can be 
consolidated. Accounts will be reconciled on a monthly basis. W e will review the current investment 
policy and determ ine if updated procedures are necessary. 

FIXED ASSETS 

During our audit, it was brought to our attention that a physical inventory of fixed assets is not 
performed periodically by the City and that proper control of fixed assets is not maintained by tagging 
equipm enl. 3"he City should implement periodic physical inventories to prevent m isappropriation of 

assets and determine that the balance on the general ledger is properly adjusted to reflect the actual 
inventory  of fixed assets. 
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W e also noted that depreciation expense for the enterprise funds for the year does not agree to the 
depreciation calculation schedule. The City uses a computer-generated printout to determ ine how 
m uch depreciation expense should be recognized for the current year. A s part of audit procedures

, w e 

attempted to reconcile this printout to the depreciation calculation schedule (which is also generated by 
tile same computer program). The two did not agree. The City should determine why these two 
schedules did not agree. If necessary, the computer software vendor m ay need to be contacted. The 
City should ensure that the depreciation program is perform ing properly to reflect tile proper 

depreciatiou expense (and the corresponding effect on fixed assets) in the financial statements. 

M anagem enl~s Response 

W e w ill perform periodic physical inventories and will ensure that the balance per the general ledger 
reflects tile actual inventory m/band. W e w ill ensure that the depreciation program is functioning so 
thai it reflects tile proper depreciation expense. 

AM BULAN CE O PERA TIO N S 

D ue From Police Jury ---  The City is currently carry ing in the Am bulance Fund a receivable fiom the 
Lincoln Parish Police Jury for services rendered outside of the Ruston city lim its. Part of this 
receivable balance dates back over three years and continues to increase every nlonth. Tile City 
believes these funds w ill ultim ately be collected, however, there is not a signed contract establishing 
tile anm unt to be paid to the City for providing ambulance services outside tile City lim its. W e 
recom mend that the City complete negotiations and sign a contract with tile Lincoln Parish Police Jury 
to allow collection of these funds. 

M anagelneut's R esponse 

The City is currently in contact w ith the Lincoln Parish Police Jury in regards to completing an 
agreem ent that is acceptable to both parties. 

A m hulanee A ccounts R eceivable -- A s noted in our previous letter to m anagem ent, one person in 
the Fire Department is responsible for all of the following functions related to am bulance fees: 

~ billin[~ of am bulance fees 
~ issuing follow up billiugs for accounts not paid 
~ decision'to stop billing individual delinquent accounts 

To ensure a proper control environment, tile responsibility for recording aud adjustiug tile ambulance 
fee accounts should be segregated. 
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In addition, City policy stales that for accounts to be written off, approval of the Board of Aldermen is 
required. A s noted in our previous letter to managem ent, tile City does not consistently follow a policy 
of evaluating and w riting off uncollectible receivable accounts for am bulance fees. Each year the City 
should go, through a formal evalnation of the individual accounts to determine which accounts shoukl 
be written off. Just as with the electric, water and sewerage receivable accounts, the write off of 
accounts should require the approval of the Board of Alderm en. 

M anagellient ~s Response 

During January 1999, the Fire Departmeut contracted with a vendor to provide billing and collection 
on am bulance accounts receivable. Any accounts that are evaluated and determ ined that should be 
written of f w ill be presented to the Board of Aldermen for approval. 

ELECTRIC UTILITY BILLING S 

As noted in our previous letter to m anagem ent, it w as brought to our attention that two custom ers were 
not payiug their electric bills in a timely manner and that cut off procedures were not beiug utilized 
due to m edical problem s of the custom er. The City should adopt a form al policy on the handling of 
such m atters as utilities are not norm ally in the position of providing free service. ]'his policy should 

include: 

~ The use of m edical lags on tile electric m eter to identify m edical problem s w ith the occupants; 
* Approval by the Board of Aldermen of any users that are given extended term s; 
~ Notification procedures to the occupant that the electricity will be cut off on a certain date and that 

they are required to m ake arrangem ents. 

City personnel m ay want to consult with other area electric utilities to determ ine their policies for 
handling these m atters. The policy should be reviewed by the City attorney prior to its adoption. 

M anagem ent~s R esponse 

W e w ill request the City Attorney to review the proposed policy and then will present it to Board of 

A lderm en for/beir approval. 

PAR K S AN D R ECREATIO N 

Internal Control W eaknesses --  As a part of a separate engagem ent, we perform ed procedures w ith 
respect to the internal control and docum entation procedures of tile City of Ruston's Parks and 

Recreation Board (the "Board"). Tile objective of this work was to review and test the Board's current 
policies and procedures regarding, internal controls over cash receipts and disbursem ents and payroll. 
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A s a result of this w ork, we noted several weaknesses in tile system of internal controls that we 
reported to the Board in a separate letter dated November 8, 1996. Our findings and recommendations 
were discussed w ith the Board in Decem ber 1996. W e recommend the City m onitor tile Board's 
progress in implementing the recommendations as discussed in our letter, to ensure there is an 
effective system of internal controls in place in tile City's Parks and Recreation Departm ent. 

The Parks and Recreation Department is managed by tile Parks and Recreation Board. Issues have 
occurred in several areas as to whether the Board m ust com ply w ith State and local laws, how that 
compliance is to be documented, and who is ultimately responsible for noncompliance, if any. 

These issues include 

,, Bid laws and emergency determ ination procedures 
~ Purchases of food for functions 
~ V acation policies 
~ Car allowances 
~ Approval procedures to incur debt 
~ Com pliance with public m eeting laws 
~ A uthority to sign contracts 

~ Employee jurisdiction 

The structure of the Parks and Recreation Board should be reviewed and tile above issues addressed as 
well as the issue of the City's liability for action of the Parks and Recreation Board. 

M anagem ent's Response 

The City of Rnston w ill m onitor the Board's progress in im plem enting tile internal control 
recomm erldations. W e will review the structure of the Parks and Recreation Board and tile issue ofthc 
City's liaM lity for the action of the Board. 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

A s noted ill our prior year letter to m anagement, the General Self Insurance Fund had a deficit retained 
earnings balance. The deficit was reduced by approximately $251,000 for tile year endcd 
September 30, 1998, leaving a deficit balance of approximately $290,000. The City should continue to 
m onitor tile activity of this fund, m aking sure the deficit is elim inated over time and not allow tile 
deficit to increase. 
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M anagem ent's R esponse 

Tile City of Ruston will continue to monitor tile activity of this fund. W e will elim inate the deficit 
over tim e. 

ADH ERENCE TO PAY SCALES 

As noted in our previous letters to m anagem ent, from our review of the City pay records
, we noted that 

City em ployees were not always paid in accordance with the grade established for their position on tile 
pay scale. W e were unable to determ ine from the payroll flies, why there was deviation from the 
approved pay scale. To ensure that the pay scale is uniform ly applied am ong all em ployees

, tile City 
pay scale should be adhered to as w ritten or m odified to accom m odate the reasons for tile exceptions

. 

M anagenlent~s R esponse 

W e w ill work towards having either a new compensation plan adopted or w ill document tile reasons 
for tile exceptions to tile pay scale. 

These conditions w ere considered in determ ining tile nature, tim ing, and extent of tile audit tests 
applied ill our audit of the 1998 financial statements, and this report does not affect our report on these 
financial statements dated M arch 5, 1999. W e have not considered internal com rol since tile date of 
ol1i reporl. 

W e w ould like to take this opportunity to acknow ledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us by 
the personnel of the City during the course of our audit. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of tile M ayor and Board of Alderlnen 
managem ent, tile State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the cognizant agency

, and other federa 
agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties

. 

Very truly ),ours 


